
Notice of Meeting
Eastern Area 
Planning Committee
Wednesday, 28th August, 2019 
at 6.30 pm
in Calcot Centre, Highview (off Royal 
Avenue), Calcot
Members Interests
Note:  If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on 
this agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Date of despatch of Agenda:  Monday, 19 August 2019

FURTHER INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
Note: The Council broadcasts some of its meetings on the internet, known as webcasting. If this 
meeting is webcasted, please note that any speakers addressing this meeting could be filmed. If 
you are speaking at a meeting and do not wish to be filmed, please notify the Chairman before 
the meeting takes place. Please note however that you will be audio-recorded. Those taking 
part in Public Speaking are reminded that speakers in each representation category are 
grouped and each group will have a maximum of 5 minutes to present its case.

Plans relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting can be viewed in the 
Calcot Centre between 5.30pm and 6.30pm on the day of the meeting.

No new information may be produced to Committee on the night (this does not prevent 
applicants or objectors raising new points verbally). If objectors or applicants wish to introduce 
new additional material they must provide such material to planning officers at least 5 clear 
working days before the meeting (in line with the Local Authorities (Access to Meetings and 
Documents) (Period of Notice) (England) Order 2002).

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents referred to 
in Part I reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148
Email: planapps@westberks.gov.uk 

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting

Public Document Pack

mailto:planapps@westberks.gov.uk


Agenda - Eastern Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 
(continued)

Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the Council’s 
website at www.westberks.gov.uk 

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to Stephen Chard on (01635) 519462     
Email: stephen.chard@westberks.gov.uk  

http://www.westberks.gov.uk/


Agenda - Eastern Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 
(continued)

To: Councillors Peter Argyle, Jeremy Cottam, Alan Law (Chairman), 
Royce Longton, Alan Macro, Geoff Mayes, Graham Pask, Joanne Stewart and 
Andrew Williamson

Substitutes: Councillors Gareth Hurley, Owen Jeffery, Nassar Kessell, Tony Linden, 
Ross Mackinnon and Keith Woodhams

Agenda
Part I Page No.

1.   Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting.

2.   Minutes 5 - 34
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this 
Committee held on 7 August 2019.

3.   Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any 
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on 
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.   Schedule of Planning Applications
(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the 
right to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest 
and participation in individual applications.)

(1)    Application No. & Parish: 19/00031/FUL - Land west of Hill Place, 
Bath Road, Woolhampton

35 - 54

Proposal: Retrospective application. Erection of 2 day rooms, 2 
mobile homes, and 2 touring caravans, for occupation by 
gypsies/travellers. Creation of new access onto highway 
and hardstanding. Erection of fencing

Location: Land west of Hill Place, Bath Road, Woolhampton
Applicant: Tammy Black and James Tombs
Recommendation: The Head of Development and Planning be 

authorised to GRANT planning permission

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


Agenda - Eastern Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 
(continued)

Background Papers

(a) The West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.
(b) The West Berkshire District Local Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the 

Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire, the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire and 
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents.

(c) Any previous planning applications for the site, together with correspondence and 
report(s) on those applications.

(d) The case file for the current application comprising plans, application forms, 
correspondence and case officer’s notes.

(e) The Human Rights Act.

Sarah Clarke
Head of Legal and Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.



DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 7 AUGUST 2019

Councillors Present: Jeremy Cottam, Alan Law (Chairman), Tony Linden (Substitute) (In place 
of Andrew Williamson), Royce Longton, Alan Macro, Geoff Mayes, Graham Pask and 
Joanne Stewart

Also Present: Jessica Bailiss (Policy Officer (Executive Support)), Michael Butler (Principal 
Planning Officer), Stephen Chard (Principal Policy Officer), Gareth Dowding (Senior Engineer), 
Lydia Mather (Senior Planning Officer), David Pearson (Development Control Team Leader) 
and Shiraz Sheikh (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Peter Argyle and Councillor Andrew 
Williamson

PART I

12. Minutes
The Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2019 were approved as a true and correct 
record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the following amendments: 
Item 10 (2) – 18/02975/FUL – The Swan at Streatley, High Street, Streatley
Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent, second paragraph, first and second 
sentences:
Councillor Law then queried if there would be an intensification of use of the site by the 
Coppa Club when there was no indication of a Coppa Club in the 2016/17 
applications. Thus the number of restaurant covers would increase beyond the planning 
permission granted for redevelopment of The Swan in 2016. 
Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent, third paragraph, first sentence:
Councillor Law followed this by asking if ‘up to 300 covers’ was an intensification of use 
by the Coppa Club. 
Ward Member Representation (first bullet point):
He called the application in to Committee. The applicant had requested this action if the 
application was recommended for refusal, but Councillor Law clarified that he had done 
so regardless of the Officer recommendation. 
Ward Member Representation (final bullet point):
At this point, Councillor Law advised that he was tending to be supportive of the Officer 
recommendation for refusal, but still wished to hear and consider views of other 
Committee Members. 
Debate – seventh paragraph, second sentence:
The strong support did not reflect the views of many Streatley residents he had 
discussed this with, other than some High Street residents, church goers and users of 
the Morrell Room whose points were understood. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Debate – final paragraph, first sentence:
Councillor Law proposed to accept Officers’ recommendation to refuse planning 
permission and if necessary an Appeal Inspector could rule on this complex 
application. 

13. Declarations of Interest
Councillor Royce Longton declared an interest in Agenda Item 4(2), but reported that as 
his interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the 
matter.
All Members had been lobbied by the applicant for Agenda Item 4(2), but reported that 
they would consider the application with an open mind. As their interest was a personal 
or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined 
to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.
As per the above, Councillor Tony Linden declared that he had received information on 
the morning of the Committee concerning Agenda Item 4(2) and confirmed that he would 
not take this information into consideration as it had not been received by the deadline. 
The Chairman highlighted that this information had been received by all Committee 
Members and stated it was poor practice as no new evidence could be considered after 
the deadline for new information had passed. 

14. Schedule of Planning Applications
(1) Application No. & Parish: 19/00344/COMIND Stonehams Farm, 

Long Lane, Tilehurst
The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(1)) concerning Planning Application 
19/00344/COMIND in respect of the demolition of existing structures and erection of an 
85 bed care home (Class C2) with associated works including one access, parking, 
services and landscaping.
Mr Michael Butler introduced the report to Members’ of the Committee, which 
recommended conditional approval, and ran through the key points. Over 10 letters of 
objection had been received for the application. Objections had been received from 
Tilehurst Parish Council, Public Rights of Way and Pang Valley Ramblers. Objections 
had not been received from any of the other statutory bodies consulted on the 
application.
Mr Butler clarified that the original application for the site included a 74 bed care home 
plus four additional dwellings with a separate access. Following negotiations with Officers 
the dwellings were removed along with the additional access. The number of bed spaces 
at the proposed care home increased by 11 to 85. 
Regarding Planning Policy, Mr Butler reported that the National Planning Practice 
Guidance (NPPG) encouraged the provision of care homes. Mr Butler drew attention to 
section 6.2.2 of the report which highlighted that there remained an extant need for care 
home beds.
Mr Butler drew attention to comments in the update sheet from Travel Policy, which 
raised no objections to the proposal. The update sheet also contained a comment from 
the Highways Officer in response to ongoing concerns raised at the site visit regarding 
access to the site.

Page 6



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Also in the update sheet was a recommendation to amend the wording of condition 16 
concerning reducing the age restriction on people entering the care home from 65 to 55 
years old. 
Finally Mr Butler clarified that there was no proposed footpath link between the 
application site and the housing to the north west of the site. This had been indicated in 
the Housing Site Allocation Development Plan Document (HAS DPD) however, did not 
form part of the application given the nature of the proposal and the residents of the care 
home who would not be walking outside the application site for health and safety 
reasons. 
Mr Butler concluded that on balance Officers were recommending the application be 
approved. 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr Clive Taylor and Ms Rose Reynolds, 
Parish Council representatives, and Ms Hannah Pearce, agent, addressed the 
Committee on this application.
Parish Council Representation:
Mr Taylor and Ms Reynolds in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
Mr Taylor was the vice-chairman of Tilehurst Parish Council, which had taken an 
interested view in the development of the land in question for many years. 
The Parish Council objected to the proposal for an 85 bed care home one the site for a 
number of reasons:

1) The HSA DPD had been adopted by West Berkshire Council on 17th May 
2017. Originally the site had been allocated in the view of accommodating 15 
family dwellings. It was important that consistency was applied and if the 
current proposal was approved it would call the whole HSA DPD process into 
question. 

2) The site was outside the settlement boundary and within the North Wessex 
Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (NWD AONB). 

3) There was no evidence to suggest that a care home was required in the area. 
4) There was concern regarding where site traffic would park during the 

development phase.
5) The access off Long Lane was located at the narrowest point and was not 

deemed appropriate by the Parish Council. There was also a dip in the road at 
the proposed access point, which would impair vision. 

6) The road proposed at the exit for the site was already used at a ‘rat run’ to the 
M4 and if the hedgerow was not maintained it would become a single track 
lane. 

7) There was insufficient car parking proposed for the site. There could potentially 
be up to 25 members of staff per shift, which would only leave three spaces for 
visitors to the care home. Mr Taylor was concerned about overspill parking and 
highlighted that Long Lane was not suitable for this purpose. 

8) The site was not easily accessible by public transport. 
9) Because care workers were often paid the minimum wage, this would attract 

workers from further afield 
10) Mr Taylor referred to potential shift patterns and did not feel that the projected 

traffic movements to and from the site included staff movements. 

Page 7



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

11) The number 16 bus service was the only one serving the area and only 
stopped once per hour on a Saturday. Anyone accessing the bus stop would 
have to walk along Lone Lane, which was considered dangerous. 

12) Finally Mr Taylor stated that plans for the site no longer included much needed 
affordable housing, which had been included as part of application for 15 
houses permitted in June 2017. There was no need for such a care home in 
the local area and Mr Taylor stated that a similar provision in the area was 
currently underused. 

Member Questions to the Parish Council:
Councillor Graham Pask asked the representatives from the Parish Council to describe 
the location of the bus stop. Ms Reynolds stated that it was 200 yards from the 
roundabout off Dark Lane. 
Councillor Alan Macro asked what information the Parish Council was basing its 
statement on, regarding shift patterns. Ms Reynolds stated that the information could be 
found in the Planning Officer’s report. 
Agent’s Representations:
Ms Hannah Pearce in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The care home would provide an acute care setting.

 The principle of the development was well established. 

 The site had been allocated through the Local Plan and there was already planning 
permission on the site for 15 dwellings.

 The proposed care home would sit within the settlement boundary. 

 Care homes were classed as C2 and needed to be considered under new policy 
guidance. 

 If approved 47 of the units could be counted towards the housing supply. This would 
release housing stock locally. 

 Nationally the elderly population was increasing. Planning Policy required specialist 
accommodation to meet the needs of people with Dementia. 

 The proposed care home had a low roof profile being only 2.5 storeys high.  The 
overall height of the proposal was the same height as the dwelling located next to the 
site. 

 Regarding the wider surroundings, 66 dwellings had recently been approved on the 
adjacent site. Therefore the proposal would sit comfortably within its surroundings 
and the adjacent site would provide an element of screening. 

 Pedestrian crossings were proposed as part of the development.

 No objections had been received from any of the statutory consultees. 

 There was an identified need for a care home in the local area. 
Member Questions to the Agent:
Councillor Graham Pask noted that a local need for such a facility had been indicated by 
Ms Pearce and asked what evidence this was based on. Ms Pearce reported that 
Christie and Co had conducted a care needs assessment on behalf of the applicant over 
a five kilometre radius. The current need in the area had been calculated to be 329 beds 
and this was expected to double by 2029. 

Page 8



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Councillor Tony Linden noted that Mr Taylor had mentioned the existence of a care home 
within the local area that was underused and asked Ms Pearce to comment on this point. 
Ms Pearce stated that the design of care homes had moved on substantially and that 
sometimes older provision was not able to meet demand. 
Councillor Jeremy Cottam referred to the calculated figure of need from the needs 
assessment of 329 beds and queried how many would be dementia patients. Ms Pearce 
confirmed that the number was based on the beds required. The care home if approved 
would be dual registered and would not be specifically for patients with dementia. 
Councillor Pask queried when a care home was classed as a nursing home. Ms Pearce 
confirmed that the care home would be dual registered so that it could provide nursing 
and residential care. There was a recognised level of staff per bed. Councillor Pask 
further questioned if staffing figures would adequately cater for the high needs of patients 
staying at the home. Ms Pearce confirmed staffing levels were based on an average and 
would be adequate to meet the need of patients. Ms Pearce added that staff would have 
access to a mini bus service and this was incorporated into a draft travel plan for the 
development. Councillor Pask requested that the point of a draft travel plan be revisited 
later in the proceedings. 
Member Questions to Officers: 
Councillor Pask asked if there was a draft travel plan for the site and at what stage this 
would be agreed. Mr Butler stated that the applicant had submitted a draft travel plan and 
Officers were satisfied with this. Mr Butler confirmed that positively the travel plan 
contained details of a mini bus service for staff. The Chairman suggested that a condition 
be added if planning permission was approved requesting the inclusion of an agreed 
travel plan. 
Councillor Macro referred to page 28 of the report, which detailed an objection from the 
Public Rights of Way Officer and asked Officers to comment on this point. Secondly 
Councillor Macro referred to condition 20 on page 38 of the report regarding BREEAM. 
He was of the understanding that all residential developments required an ‘excellent’ 
rating for BREEAM. He noted that the application if approved would only achieve a rating 
of ‘very good’ and queried why this was deemed acceptable.  The Chairman commented 
that BREEAM had recently progressed. 
In response to Councillor Macro, Mr Butler referred to the objection from the Public 
Rights of Way Officer and stated that there had been an ongoing internal debate between 
Highways and Public Rights of Way regarding the traffic that would be generated along 
Long Lane if the application was approved. As the case officer, Mr Butler stated that he 
had taken the objection from the Public Rights of Way Officer concerning pedestrian 
safety into account however, did not consider that the small increase in generated traffic 
would warrant refusal of the application. 
Mr Butler further stated that the site was identified under the HSA DPD and many issues 
had been raised at this stage and therefore the site was not to be considered as building 
on a greenfield site. 
Regarding BREEAM, Mr Butler stated that the Chairman was correct in his comment that 
BREEAM had moved on. The rating of ‘excellent’ was extremely difficult to reach for a 
care home because of the internal building regulations required due to the nature of the 
occupants. The rating of ‘very good’ was the highest that could be achieved for the 
application.
Debate:

Page 9



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Councillor Cottam expressed his disappointment in the BREEAM rating as he did not feel 
the expected rating of ‘excellent’ should be compromised due to the nature of the 
patients staying at the care home. The Chairman highlighted that an ‘excellent’ rating 
would be impossible to achieve. 
Councillor Macro stated that he shared concerns about the possible traffic generated by 
the site as there would be almost twice the number of vehicle movements compared to 
what there was currently. Visibility along Long Lane was poor and often reached the 
stage where several vehicles had to attempt to pass each other at the same time. 
Councillor Macro was also concerned about pedestrian safety when walking in and out of 
Footpath (TILE/6/2). 
Councillor Pask stated that his interpretation of the BREEAM rating of ‘very good’ was 
that it was not quite ‘excellent’. If ‘excellent’ was not achievable then he was satisfied. 
Regarding traffic, Councillor Pask commented that visitors did not normally visit during 
peak times. He also noted the mini bus provision. Councillor Pask referred to the NPPG, 
which encouraged the planning system to help meet the needs of the elderly and 
according to a risk assessment conducted over a five kilometre radius, there was a need 
for such a facility. Councillor Pask commented that on balance he was minded to support 
the application and therefore proposed that Members support Officer recommendation to 
approve planning permission. He added that approval would need to be subject to an 
agreed traffic plan that provided adequate means of travel to the site. Councillor Geoff 
Mayes seconded the proposal by Councillor Pask. 
Councillor Linden stated that the site once fell within his own ward and therefore he was 
aware of the history of the site. He understood concerns about traffic generation and 
safety however, the Highways Officers had raised no objection to the application. 
Councillor Linden noted that the site already had planning permission for a number of 
dwellings and therefore he was minded to support the application. 
Councillor Geoff Mayes noted that Thames Water had raised a concern regarding water 
supply to the site and queried if the supply was adequate. Mr Butler stated that this would 
be dealt with through conditions. 
The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by Councillor 
Pask, seconded by Councillor Mayes, to support Officer recommendation, subject to an 
additional condition ensuring a travel plan was submitted and agreed. At the vote the 
motion was carried. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions:
Conditions
1. Time limit.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

2. Plans approved. 
The development must be carried out in strict accord with the following approved 
plans: [all G4250] Site layout-90-001w, Elevations-0-P-07 B, Location plan-P-08 C, 
Ground floor-P-01-E, Roof plan-P-04-C, First floor-P-02-E, Second Floor-P-03-E.
Reason: To clarify the permission in accord with the DMPO of 2015.

Page 10



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

3. Samples of materials.
On completion of the slab level of the care home no further work shall take place until 
samples of the materials to be used in the proposed development have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This condition 
shall apply irrespective of any indications as to the details that may have been 
submitted with the application, and shall where necessary include the submission of 
samples of glass, plastic and mortar materials. Thereafter the materials used in the 
development shall be in accordance with the approved samples.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy ADPP5 in the 
WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

4. Hours of working.
The hours of work for all contractors for the duration of the site development shall 
unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority in writing be limited to:
7.30 am to 6.00 p.m. on Mondays to Fridays 8.30 am to 1.00 p.m. on Saturdays and 
NO work shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in accord with 
saved policy OVS6 in the WBDLP of 1991 to 2006.

5. Contamination.
Should any unforeseen contamination be encountered during the development, the 
developer shall inform the Local Planning Authority immediately. Any subsequent 
investigation/remedial/protective works deemed necessary by the Local Planning 
Authority shall be carried out to agreed timescales and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing. If no contamination is encountered during the 
development, a letter confirming this fact shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority upon completion of the development.
Reason To ensure public safety is protected, in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 
2019.

6. SUDS 
No construction shall take place until details of sustainable drainage measures to 
manage surface water within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall:
e) Include attenuation measures to retain rainfall run-off within the site and allow 
discharge from the site to an the public sewer at no greater than 2 l/s for up to the 
1:100 year storm event with a 40% allowance for Climate Change;
f) Include flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site; include flow routes such 
as low flow, overflow and exceedance routes;
g) Include pre-treatment methods to prevent any pollution or silt entering SuDS 
features or causing any contamination to the soil or groundwater;
Reason: To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; to 
prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, habitat and 
amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system can be, 
and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient manner. This condition is applied in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Part 4 of Supplementary Planning 
Document Quality Design (June 2006).

Page 11



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

7. CMS
No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The 
statement shall provide for:
(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing
(e) Wheel washing facilities
(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works
(h) HGV haul routes
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the 
interests of highway safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-
2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

8. EV charging points.
On completion of the slab level of the care home, details of electric vehicle charging 
points must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall not be occupied until associated electric vehicle charging 
point(s) have been provided in accordance with the approved drawings. The charging 
points shall thereafter be retained and kept available for the potential use of an electric 
car.
Reason: To promote the use of electric vehicle. This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Policies 
CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy P1 of the 
Housing Site Allocation DPD and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local 
Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

9. S278 works. 
The development shall not be brought into use until the following works have been 
completed via Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 or other appropriate mechanism:
a. Pedestrian crossing and footway connections across Long Lane adjacent the 
proposed access point.
b. Widening of Long Lane opposite the proposed northern vehicular access.
The works shall be constructed in accordance with the approved drawing(s) and any 
statutory undertaker's equipment or street furniture located in the position of the works 
must re-sited to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority.
Reason: In the interest of road safety and to ensure adequate and unobstructed 
provision for pedestrians and/or cyclists. This condition is imposed in accordance with 

Page 12



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026).

10. Visibility splays 
The development shall not be brought into use until the visibility splays at the 
proposed access has been provided in accordance with the approved drawings. The 
land within these visibility splays shall thereafter be kept free of all obstructions to 
visibility over a height of 0.6 metres above the carriageway level.
Reason: In the interests of road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026).

11. Vehicle parking.
The development shall not be brought into use until the vehicle parking and/or turning 
space have been surfaced, marked out and provided in accordance with the approved 
plan(s). The parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking 
(of private motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.
Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in 
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road 
safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved 
Policies 2007

12. Vehicle access construction.
The development shall not be brought into use until the associated vehicular access 
onto Long Lane has been constructed in accordance with the approved drawing(s).
Reason: In the interest of road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework (July 2018) and Policy CS13 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

13. Cycle parking. 
The development shall not be brought into use until associated cycle parking and 
storage space has been provided in accordance with the approved details and 
retained for this purpose at all times.
Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe cycle storage space within the site. 
This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework,, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy 
TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

14. Water network upgrades.
The care home shall not be occupied until confirmation has been provided that either 
all water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows from the 
development have been completed; or an infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed 
with Thames Water to allow the care home to be occupied. Where an infrastructure 
phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with 
the agreed infrastructure phasing plan.
Reason: The development may lead to no / low water pressure and network 
reinforcement works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity 

Page 13



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

is made available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from the new 
development in accordance with the advice in the NPPF on public health.

15. Minerals  
No development shall commence until the following has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter all works for each 
phase shall be carried out in accordance with the methods agreed throughout the 
construction period:
i) a method for ensuring that minerals that can be viably recovered during the 
development are recovered and put to beneficial use;
ii) a method to record the quantity of recovered mineral (for re-use on site or off-site) 
and the reporting of this quantity to the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure no sterilisation of minerals in accord with policy 2A of the RMLP 
for West Berkshire.

16. Age restriction.
At no time shall any occupant of the care home be under the age of 55 years old, 
unless specific agreement in writing with the Local Planning Authority has been 
achieved.
Reason: To ensure the care home is used for its intended purpose, and in the 
interests of ensuring parking on site does not become congested, in accord with policy 
CS13 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

17.  Finished floor levels. 
No development shall commence until details of the finished floor levels in relation to 
existing and proposed ground levels have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved levels.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory relationship between the proposed building and the 
adjacent land in accordance with Policy ADPP5 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

18. Landscaping 
No development shall commence until, a detailed scheme of landscaping for the site 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
details shall include schedules of plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities, an implementation programme and details of written specifications 
including cultivation and other operations involving tree, shrub and grass 
establishment. The scheme shall ensure;
a) Completion of the approved landscape scheme within the first planting season 
following completion of development.
b) Any trees shrubs or plants that die, become seriously damaged or die within five 
years of this development shall be replaced in the following year by plants of the same 
size and species.
Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping in 
accordance with the objectives of policy ADPP5 of the WBCS of 2006 to 2026, and the 
conservation of the AONB area.

19. Use of site restricted. 
The premises shall be used for a care home only and for no other purposes in Class 
C2 of the Schedule of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as 

Page 14



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

amended) or any subsequent amendment or replacement of this Order, nor shall its 
use be changed to any use falling under any other use class set out in the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) or any consequent 
amendment or replacement of this Order.
Reason: Any other use is not acceptable on the site in accordance with the advice in 
the DMPO of 2015 and the parking facilities on the site.

20. BREEAM 
The Care Home shall achieve ‘very good’ under BREEAM (or any such equivalent 
national measure of sustainable building which replaces that scheme). The care home 
shall not be occupied until a final Certificate has been issued certifying that BREEAM 
(or any such equivalent national measure of sustainable building which replaces that 
scheme) rating of very good has been achieved for the development, has been issued 
and a copy has been provided to the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the development contributes to sustainable construction. This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
policy CS15 of the WBCS of 2006 to 2026. 

21. External lighting. 
On completion of the slab level of the care home, details of the external lighting to be 
used in the areas around the proposed building shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the care home shall not be occupied 
until the external lighting has been installed in accordance with the approved details. No 
additional external lighting other than that proposed in accordance with the approved 
details shall be installed unless permission has been granted in respect of a planning 
application.
Reason: The Local Planning Authority wish to be satisfied that these details are 
satisfactory, having regard to the setting of the development in the AONB in accord with 
policy ADPP5 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

22. Hard surfacing and fencing. 
On completion of the slab level of the Care Home, a scheme for the means of treatment 
of the hard surfaced areas of the site, and the perimeter fencing around the site, must 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The care home 
shall not be occupied until the hard surfaced areas and fencing has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved schemes.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, in accordance with Policy ADPP5 of the 
WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

23. Travel Plan Condition 
The owner/occupier shall implement the approved Travel Plan (dated 07 July 2019), 
commencing no later than three months after the first occupation of the development 
hereby approved and take reasonable practicable steps thereafter to deliver the key 
measures as outlined in the plan to encourage sustainable travel and to discourage car 
journeys to the site. This shall include if possible a minibus service for staff if proved 
viable.   The owner/occupier shall also maintain the agreed targets and undertake 
monitoring and reporting within the timescales set out in the plan.
Reason:  To ensure the development reduces reliance on private motor vehicles.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 
CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS1 of the West 

Page 15



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Berkshire Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007) and Policy LTP SC1 of the Local 
Transport Plan for West Berkshire 2011-2026.

Informative. 
1. This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable 

development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance 
to secure high quality appropriate development. In this application whilst there has 
been a need to balance conflicting considerations, the Local Planning Authority 
has worked proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered 
to be a development which improves the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area.

(2) Application No. & Parish: 19/00772/RESMAJ Land adjacent to 
Primrose Croft, Reading Road, Burghfield Common

(Councillor Royce Longton declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 4(2) by virtue of 
the fact that the manager of The Hollies Nursing Home was his next door neighbour. As 
his interest was personal and not prejudicial or a disclosable pecuniary interest, he 
determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.)
(All Members had been lobbied by the applicant for Agenda Item 4(2), but reported that 
they would consider the application with an open mind. As their interest was a personal 
or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined 
to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.)
The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(2)) concerning Planning Application 
19/00772/RESMAJ in respect of a reserved matters application following approval of the 
outline application 16/0168/OUTMAJ for 28 dwellings. Matters to be considered: 
Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale.
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr Ian Morrin and Ms Andrea Hales, 
Parish Council representatives, Dr Gail Johnston and Mr Ben Tait, objectors, Mr Alastair 
Pott and Ms Michelle Quan, applicant/agent, and Councillor Graham Bridgman (Ward 
Member) addressed the Committee on this application.
Parish Representation
Mr Morrin in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
This was an unpopular development in Burghfield due to the serious impact it would have 
upon the health of residents living at the Hollies Nursing Home. 
The housing density of 30 dwellings per hectare was not sympathetic and was out of 
keeping with the character of the surrounding area. 
The affordable housing proposed should be distributed across the site, in line with West 
Berkshire Council’s policy, rather than being clustered together. 
The buffers between the site and the Hollies needed to be enhanced to go beyond the 
minimum requirement. 
The proposal conflicted with the Burghfield Parish Design Statement. 
Pedestrian safety needed to be ensured. The public footpath on Reading Road would be 
on the opposite side from the development with no form of crossing facility. 
A car park layout plan needed to be submitted. 
Only one point of access was proposed to the site, this was a concern for emergency 
vehicle access. 

Page 16



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Ms Hales in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
Density was a concern as this created a close boundary with the Hollies. 
There was no agreement in place for the maintenance of the buffers. 
The proposal had received approximately 50 objections. The noise impact created by the 
development of and occupation of the site would have a serious long term impact upon 
the health and wellbeing of residents of the Hollies, in particular to their mental health. 
The exposure to constant noise would result in sleep deprivation and depression. All the 
windows of the Hollies were single glazed. 
Many Hollies’ residents suffered from dementia and it would be difficult for them to 
understand and cope with the close proximity of the development and the noise it would 
generate. Ms Hales urged the Committee to consider how they would view this 
application if they had a relative living at the Hollies. 
Construction equipment and vehicles would be stored to the rear of the nursing home 
which was another concern. 
Member Questions to the Parish
Councillor Graham Pask sought to understand the car parking concern when provision 
was allocated for each dwelling. Mr Morrin explained that the Burghfield Parish Design 
Statement did not allow for on street car parking in front of houses. It was the view of the 
Parish Council that the number of cars would exceed the parking provision and this 
would result in on street car parking. 
In response to questions from Councillor Alan Macro, Ms Hales confirmed that the 
concern of noise pollution applied to both the construction phase and once the 
development was completed. When considering this was a reserved matters application, 
Ms Hales reiterated that the proposed density was of concern. This would increase noise 
and was not in keeping with local housing. 
Objector Representation
Dr Johnston in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
There was a need to conduct an extensive Phase One Habitat Survey on the site. There 
was no evidence that this had been undertaken. The ecologist employed by the applicant 
had relied upon a basic four year old survey which was redundant and an up to date and 
detailed habitat survey was needed. 
The Council’s Ecologist had commented that additional biodiversity enhancements were 
needed. 
No buffer was proposed between the site and the ancient woodland. This was needed, if 
the application was approved, to mitigate the significant impact on the ancient woodland 
from the development. 
Mr Tait in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
He was addressing the Committee on behalf of the Hollies. Members of staff were very 
disappointed with the proposal and its recommendation for approval. It had been their 
expectation that West Berkshire Council would do more to protect residents. The 
proposal, if implemented, would have a serious impact on residents’ health and privacy. 
The residents deserved the highest degree of privacy. However, the distance between 
the Hollies and the development only just adhered to the required separation distance. 
This need for privacy was most apparent on the upper floors where residents received 
the majority of their care, including palliative care. However, there would be no screening 

Page 17



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

for many years before planting would have grown to the required height. Once grown it 
would block natural light received by the Hollies. 
If the application was approved, then more needed to be done to enhance the buffers. 
The distance between the Hollies and the proposed dwellings needed to be increased in 
order to adhere to the government guidance on such distances in low density housing 
areas. The planning report stated that West Berkshire Council had no grounds on which 
to seek a greater separation distance, but Mr Tait questioned this by making reference to 
a previous appeal decision for the site in 2011 when the Appeal Inspector disagreed with 
West Berkshire Council’s view on this point and felt that more should be done to protect 
the amenity of the Hollies. Mr Tait asked why this previous refusal reason was no longer 
considered an issue. 
There would be no connection between this site and the rest of the village, and this was 
prevented by land ownership issues. There was no proposal to extend or widen the 
existing pathway to enable access to the village. 
Member Questions to the Objectors
No questions were put to the objectors. Councillor Alan Law commented that the queries 
raised in the presentation would be put to officers for clarification later in the meeting. 
Applicant/Agent Representation
Ms Quan in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
The site was allocated for housing development in the Housing Site Allocations 
Development Plan Document (HSA DPD). 
Outline planning permission for 28 dwellings was granted in October 2018. This 
permission included approval of the access and a Section 106 agreement. This 
application was purely to consider reserved matters. 
Consultation had taken place on the proposal, feedback had been taken on board and 
many revisions had been made to the application as a result. This included the 
incorporation of one bedroom apartments to help meet local need. The planting scheme 
had also been enhanced to improve screening. 
The applicant was aiming to reflect local character in the design of the dwellings/the site 
and had worked hard to deliver an acceptable scheme. 
Parking provision was in accordance with the required standards. Highways Officers had 
no objection to the proposal subject to conditions. 
The points raised by the Housing Officer had been addressed. This was the first phase of 
development for this allocated site with more development, including affordable housing, 
to follow. Approval would contribute to West Berkshire’s housing supply. 
Footpath improvements could be enhanced. 
Approval of the application was sought in line with the Officer recommendation. 
Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent
Councillor Tony Linden questioned plans to lessen the impact of the development on 
residents of the Hollies. Ms Quan explained that the indicative layout did form part of the 
outline application. Site constraints meant that options around the access were limited. 
However, the buffer had increased from that shown on the indicative layout to three 
metres on both sides. There was also willingness to accept an amended condition to 
allow for further negotiations on the buffer with the Hollies. 

Page 18



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Councillor Graham Pask queried why the affordable housing was not proposed to be 
‘pepper potted’. Ms Quan reiterated that this proposal was part of a wider housing 
allocation. This was the first phase only. In terms of the affordable housing for this 
application, the likely preferences of developers for clusters of affordable housing had 
been taken into account. Mr Pott added that this approach was easier to manage for 
developers. 
Councillor Geoff Mayes queried access for construction vehicles. He was concerned that 
this would be restricted when taking into account the 0.6 metre gravel boards to be in 
place. Ms Quan explained that this would form part of the Construction Management 
Plan. Clauses within the S106 agreement would allow for access and the ability to 
manage ground levels. Mr Pott confirmed that these factors would ensure that access for 
construction vehicles could be accommodated alongside the gravel boarding. 
Councillor Jeremy Cottam asked if the existing planting facing the road would be 
retained. Ms Quan advised that it would be necessary for some loss of this planting to 
accommodate the development, but replacement planting was proposed. The Ecologist 
was content on this point. 
Councillor Cottam followed this by querying what would be retained. Mr Pott explained 
that the majority of existing planting would have to be removed to achieve the necessary 
sight lines. He reiterated that there would be replacement planting. 
Councillor Jo Stewart referred to the impact on residents of the Hollies. She 
acknowledged the point around the three metre buffer, but this would not serve to abate 
noise from gardens when families/children would likely occupy some of the new 
dwellings. Mr Pott advised that he had much experience in the development of retirement 
villages and made the point that this type of noise gave enjoyment to some elderly 
residents. 
Ward Member Representation
Councillor Bridgman, in addressing the Committee as Ward Member, raised the following 
points:
Councillor Bridgman began by advising the Committee that he had held lengthy 
discussions with both the applicant and the owner of the Hollies on this application, and 
he would be making reference to some points highlighted by the Hollies. 
As explained in the report, the outline permission included two additional crossing points 
on Reading Road. However, this needed to be confirmed as the file plan showed a single 
crossing and a traffic island. 
Hours of work and the storage of construction vehicles/equipment was a point of concern 
for the Hollies, in particular the impact this could have on residents suffering from 
dementia. The request from The Hollies was that construction work should not start 
earlier than 10.00am to minimise the disturbance on residents. 
Turning to the boundary/buffer requirements, Councillor Bridgman felt there was a 
discrepancy in the plans. It needed to be ensured that the buffer ran the required length 
and an appropriate condition was needed to cover this. Once planted by the applicant, 
the maintenance of the buffer would transfer to the Hollies. The trees to be planted would 
be between 3 metres and 3.5 metres in height. He questioned whether the width of the 
buffer (3 metres) was an increase as this was not defined in policy and his understanding 
was that this was a proposal of the applicant. 
Member Questions to Officers

Page 19



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Councillor Law referred to points of concerns raised by speakers and asked Officers to 
comment on those. 
Starting with the landscape buffer, Lydia Mather (Senior Planning Officer) explained that 
the buffer was defined in the HSA DPD. In addition, a parameter plan was approved at 
the outline stage. She confirmed that the 3 metre width was an increase on the 
parameter plan. 
The Tree Officer was content with the landscaping subject to conditions (condition 8). 
This condition could however be amended to exclude the existing landscaping plans in 
the area adjacent to the Hollies and for the details of the landscaping for this area being 
submitted separately and prior to occupation of the dwellings. This was supported by 
Members. 
The policy guidance on the separation distance between properties was 21 metres and 
this was achieved for all plots with the exception of plot 4. Mrs Mather suggested that this 
could be resolved by repositioning plot 4 so that it overlooked garages rather than the 
Hollies. 
Ecological aspects were considered at the outline stage when relevant documentation 
was submitted. This was not a consideration for this reserved matters application. The 
Ecologist had not issued a request for further documentation, i.e. Phase One Habitat 
Survey and had no objection to this application subject to conditions. 
Gareth Dowding (Senior Engineer) clarified that crossing points were in line with the 
S106 legal agreement. There were two traffic islands near to the entry to the site but only 
one of those was a crossing point. The second traffic island incorporated a dropped kerb. 
In conclusion there were no road safety concerns. 
Standard hours of work were set as a condition in the outline permission and would be 
reflected in the Construction Management Plan. The hours were: 7.30am to 6.00pm 
Mondays to Fridays; 8.30am to 1.00pm Saturdays; nothing on Sundays or bank holidays. 
Councillor Law queried if there was any scope to reduce hours in line with the comment 
of the Ward Member on behalf of the Hollies. David Pearson (Development Control Team 
Leader) advised that Members could suggest amendments, but the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) stated that conditions needed to be reasonable before they 
could be imposed. It was queried whether there was scope to vary this condition when it 
was set at the outline stage. In response, Shiraz Sheikh (Deputy Monitoring Officer) did 
not feel that this would be possible. 
Councillor Royce Longton queried the location of the Sustainable Drainage System 
(SuDS) pond. Mrs Mather explained that the Local Lead Flood Authority had not objected 
to the proposed location of the pond – which would be in close proximity to the woodland. 
Councillor Geoff Mayes queried foul drainage of the site. Would this flow to a Thames 
Water pumping station or to the SuDS pond post treatment? Mrs Mather could not 
confirm this point but advised that Thames Water had no objection to the proposal 
subject to conditions. Mr Pearson added that this was a matter for building regulations 
rather than for planning. 
Councillor Jeremy Cottam raised the need to be sympathetic to the needs of residents of 
the Hollies, in particular with regard to the location of construction machinery, vehicles 
and the construction office. Mrs Mather explained that this would be covered within the 
Construction Management Plan. Mr Pearson added that should this become a concern 
during construction, Environmental Health Officers could be asked to investigate. 
Debate

Page 20



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Councillor Pask felt that the key points had been thoroughly debated. Outline permission 
was in place but it was critical that the needs of the Hollies’ residents were protected. He 
was reassured to note the point made by the applicant that he held experience in 
developing care homes/retirement villages and all efforts should be made to lessen the 
impact of the development on the Hollies. The applicant should strive to be a good 
neighbour to the Hollies as should potential future residents. 
The Parish representative had raised concern over car parking. However, paragraph 7.31 
of the report confirmed 78 parking spaces excluding garages when the requirement for 
the development was 72 spaces. 
Councillor Pask supported the proposal to reposition plot 4 to mitigate the need to 
achieve the 21 metre separation distance between properties. 
Councillor Pask proposed acceptance of Officers’ recommendation to grant approval of 
this reserved matters application subject to conditions. This was seconded by Councillor 
Cottam. 
Councillor Law queried if the repositioning of plot 4 could be an enforceable condition or 
included as an informative. Mr Pearson advised that the Committee could recommend 
approval of the application subject to the receipt of satisfactorily amended plans with 
authority delegated to the Head of Development and Planning to determine the amended 
plans. 
Councillor Pask as proposer and Councillor Cottam as seconder were content with this 
addition to the recommendation. 
Councillor Longton remained concerned at the impact this application could have on the 
residents of the Hollies based on the level of concern expressed by the Parish Council 
and objectors. These points would only be partially mitigated by conditions and he would 
therefore abstain from the vote. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning 
permission for this reserved matters application, subject to the receipt of satisfactory 
amended plans for plot 4 and subject to the following conditions:  - including an 
amendment of condition 8 – landscaping and an additional condition relating to the 
landscaping directly adjoining (as set out below) The Hollies. 
Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved drawing numbers and documents:
Received on 5 April 2019
C-3000 Revision C
C-3001 Revision C
C-3005 Revision C
C-3006 Revision C
C-3010 Revision D
C-3011 Revision D
C-3015 Revision C
C-3025 Revision C
C-3035 Revision C
C-3040 Revision C

Page 21



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

C-3041 Revision C
C-3042 Revision C
C-3045 Revision D
C-3050 Revision C
D7438.400
WLC194-1300-001 Revision A
The Environment Partnership Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan
Design and Access Statement

Received on 5 July 2019
C-1020 Revision L
C-1021 Revision L
C-1024 Revision L
D7438.001 Revision 05
D7438.101 Revision 06
D7438.102 Revision 06
D7438.103 Revision 06
D7438.200 Revision 05
D7438.201 Revision 05
D7438.202 Revision 05
D7438.203 Revision 05
D7438.301 Revision 05
174961-03 Revision G

Received on 10 July 2019
C-1022 Revision L
C-1023 Revision L

Received on 17 July 2019
174961-05 Revision C
Received 18 July 2019
C-3020 Revision D
C-3021 Revision A
C-3030 Revision H

Received on 22 July 2019
D7438.003 Revision 04

Page 22



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Received on 26 July 2019
C-1005 Revision L1

Received on 30 July 2019
C-1010 Revision E
Reason:   For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

2. No development above the foundations of any dwelling shall take place until a 
schedule of the materials detailing the manufacturer and specifications to be used 
in the construction of the external surfaces of the dwellings hereby permitted has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This 
condition shall apply irrespective of any indications as to these matters which have 
been detailed in the current application.  Samples of the materials shall be made 
available for inspection on request. Thereafter the development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved materials.
Reason:   To ensure that the external materials are visually attractive and respond 
to local character in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019, Policies ADPP1, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
2006-2026, Policy GS1 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026, and 
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 2006.

3. Should any unforeseen land contamination be found during the development all 
relevant works shall cease and details of the contamination and the mitigation 
measures required, including timescales, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the mitigation measures shall 
be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of 
the relevant dwelling(s). Details of compliance with the mitigation shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
first occupation of the relevant dwelling(s). Should any land contamination not be 
found during development confirmation of this shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority upon completion of the construction of the dwellings hereby 
permitted. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019, policy CS14 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026, and policies OVS.6, OVS.7 and OVS.8 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

4. The drainage pond hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until details of 
its ongoing maintenance have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the drainage pond shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the drainage and surface water flooding for the site is 
sustainably managed and maintained in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2019, policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-
2026, Policies GS1 and HSA16 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026 
and the Supplementary Guidance Document: Sustainable Drainage Systems 
2018.

5. No dwelling shall be occupied until details of electric vehicle charging points for 
each house and communal points for the flats have been submitted and approved 

Page 23



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the electric vehicle charging points 
have been provided in accordance with the approved details. The details shall 
provide 7kw chargers for individual dwellings and 22kw chargers for communal 
areas, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: In the interest of sustainable development in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019, and policy P1 of the West Berkshire 
Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026. 

6. No dwelling shall be occupied until the vehicle parking and/or turning spaces have 
been surfaced, marked out and provided in accordance with the approved plans.  
The parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking (of 
private motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.
Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in 
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road 
safety and the flow of traffic in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, 
Policy TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007, 
and Policy P1 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026.

7. No dwelling shall be occupied until the cycle storage has been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans.
Reason:  To promote cycling by providing convenient and safe bicycle storage in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Policies CS13 and 
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Policy TRANS.1 of the 
West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

8. With the exception of the landscaping within the buffer around the building known 
as The Hollies, all landscaping works shall be completed in accordance with the 
submitted plans, schedule of planting and retention programme of works and other 
supporting information including drawing n umbers D7438-200 Rev 05, 201 Rev 
05, 202 Rev 05, 203 Rev 05 received on 5 July 2019 within the first planting 
season following completion of the construction of the dwellings hereby permitted. 
Any trees, shrubs or hedges planted in accordance with the approved scheme 
which are removed, die or become diseased within five years from completion of 
this development shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, 
shrubs or hedges of a similar size and species to that originally approved. The 
landscaping shall be managed and maintained in accordance with the 
Environmental Partnership Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan 
received on 5 April 2019. 
Reason:  To ensure the implementation, management and maintenance of a 
satisfactory scheme of landscaping in accordance with the objectives of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy July 2006-2026.

9. The dwellings shown as plots 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 22 shall not be 
occupied until details of the landscaping within the buffer to the property known as 
The Hollies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved landscaping shall be provided prior to the occupation of 
the dwellings on the aforementioned plots. Any trees, shrubs or hedges planted in 
accordance with the approved scheme which are removed, die or become 
diseased within five years from completion of this development shall be replaced 
within the next planting season by trees, shrubs or hedges of a similar size and 
species to that originally provided. The landscaping shall be managed and 

Page 24



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

maintained in accordance with the Environmental Partnership Landscape 
Management and Maintenance Plan received on 5 April 2019. 
Reason:  To ensure the implementation, management and maintenance of a 
satisfactory scheme of landscaping in accordance with the objectives of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026. 

10.Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order 
revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), no windows/roof lights/dormer 
windows (other than those expressly authorised by this permission) which would 
otherwise be permitted by Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B and/or C of that Order 
shall be constructed at first floor level and/or within the roof on the north east side 
elevations of the dwelling of plot 17 on drawing C-1021 Revision L received on 5 
July 2019 hereby permitted, without planning permission being granted by the 
Local Planning Authority in respect of an application made for that purpose.
Reason: In the interests of the privacy and amenity of neighbouring properties and 
to prevent the overlooking of Primrose Croft in the interests of neighbouring 
amenity in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Policy 
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Supplementary Planning 
Document Quality Design 2006 and Supplementary Planning Guidance 04/2 
House Extensions 2004.

11.Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order 
revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), no buildings or other development 
which would otherwise be permitted by Schedule 2, Part 1, Class E of that Order 
shall be carried out, on the area of land shown as a buffer to the woodland on 
parameter plan drawing 2610-A-1200-C to the north of plots 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 
flats 23-28 shown on drawing C-1021 revision L received on 5 July 2019 without 
planning permission being granted by the Local Planning Authority in respect of an 
application made for that purpose.
Reason:   To protect the woodland and local wildlife area and in the interest of 
biodiversity in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, 
Policies CS17 and CS18 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policies 
GS1 and HSA16 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026.

12.Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or an order revoking and re-
enacting that Order, with or without modification), no fences, gates, walls or other 
means of enclosure shall be altered or erected of plots 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and flats 
23-28 shown on drawing C-1021 revision L received on 5 July 2019 where it would 
be on and/or along the edge of the area of land shown as a buffer to the woodland 
as shown on parameter plan drawing 2610-A-1200-C. No gate or means of access 
shall be provided from plots 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and flats 23-28 to the woodland or 
the area shown as a buffer. 

Page 25



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Reason:   To protect the woodland and local wildlife areas and in the interest of 
biodiversity in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, 
Policies CS17 and CS18 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policies 
GS1 and HSA16 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026.

(3) Application No. & Parish: 19/01171/FULD Blacknest Farm, 
Brimpton Common, Reading, RG7 4RN

The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(3)) concerning Planning Application 
19/01171/FULD in respect of the demolition, salvage and rebuild of the existing buildings 
to create three live-work units together with access, landscaping and associated works.
Mr David Pearson introduced the report to Members’ of the Committee, which 
recommended refusal, and ran through the key points. The item had been called in by 
the Ward Member as it had been recommended for refusal, due to expressed concerns 
by local residents and Brimpton Parish Council concerning the condition of the existing 
buildings. 
Regarding the planning history of the site, there was extant consent on the site for 
conversion of the existing buildings for mixed use including residential and storage. An 
application for conversion with few alterations to the buildings had been received and 
supported by Planning Officers however, subsequently the agent had revised their plans 
and had submitted an application for the demolition and redevelopment of the site and an 
application had been refused in 2018.  The current application was an almost identical 
scheme to the one refused in 2018 and objections had been received from Ecology and 
Planning Policy.
Mr Pearson referred to the update sheet, which detailed that Officers had tried to 
persuade the applicant to provide an updated ecology report however, the applicant had 
suggested that the application be accepted in principle and then the ecology report would 
be provided afterwards. Officers’ did not agree that this was an acceptable way forward. 
Mr Pearson stated that the principle of the development was unacceptable and contrary 
to the development plan. An additional reason for refusal included the failure to provide 
an up to date report on the Brown Long Eared Bats inhabiting on the site. If approved Mr 
Pearson stated that the application would have to be referenced up to the District 
Planning Committee for final decision due to the strategic impact approval, which was 
clearly contrary to development plan policy, would have on the application of the relevant 
issues involved across the district. 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Ms Mary Cowdery, Parish Council 
representative, and Mr Sean Bates (applicant) and Mr Steven Smallman (agent), 
addressed the Committee on this application.
Parish Council Representation:
Ms Cowdery in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 Ms Cowdery was representing Brimpton Parish Council, which was in support of 
the application. 

 The site had been a brownfield site since 1897 and farm buildings had been 
present on the site since this time to her knowledge. 

 The current buildings had been present on the site since 1968 and therefore were 
not in the best condition.  

 The last application for conversion had been submitted in 2017 however, upon 
further investigation the buildings had been found to be unfit for conversion. 

Page 26



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

 The current application would bring the site up to date and would ensure it 
complied with necessary building regulations.

 Planning Policy C1 concerned settlements in the countryside and used the words 
‘close knit’ cluster of dwellings as a reason to accept development in the 
countryside, which was outside of the settlement boundary. In Ms Cowdery’s 
opinion this site met the criteria of this policy. 

 The plot sizes proposed as part of the application were similar to adjacent plots 
and not out of keeping with the nearby area and therefore in the Parish Council’s 
view met relevant criteria of Policy C1. 

 The Parish Council did not believe this part of Brimpton Common to be in the 
countryside but rather part of a community.

 Policy C9 stated that there would be a shortage of B1 floor space up until 2026 
and therefore continued support for new businesses was required. 

 It had been confirmed that Brown Long Eared Bats were present on the site. Ms 
Cowdery confirmed that there was a small wooded area less than 500 metres from 
the site and therefore the bats would adapt. 

 There were 232 households in Brimpton and 63% had responded to a recent 
questionnaire about living in the area. 40% of those responding were retired; 29% 
worked from home; 66% wanted to see more houses in the parish and 71% 
wanted new houses built in the area to be smaller. Many had also expressed 
support for the change of use of existing buildings. 

 The proposal would tidy up a derelict site and would provide much needed 
live/work units. It would increase housing on Brimpton Common. 

Member Questions to the Parish Council:
Councillor Graham Pask referred to ten houses in a row near to the site and asked if the 
site was located in the middle of these houses. Ms Cowdery confirmed that this was not 
the case. 
Councillor Joanne Stewart had noted at the site visit that there had been a need to 
ensure the access was clear to ensure another building could be accessed and queried 
what the purpose of this building was. Ms Cowdery confirmed that the building was 
owned by AWE to house equipment for measuring earthquakes. 
The Chairman noted that Ms Cowdery had stated that the buildings were no longer fit for 
conversion. He referred to section 9.5 of the report which referred to a structural survey 
report, which had been used as evidence for 17/01857FULD to prove that the existing 
buildings were structurally sound and capable of conversion. The Chairman queried what 
had changed. Ms Cowdery suggested that the Chairman direct this question the 
applicant. 
Supporter Representations:
Mr Sean Bates and Mr Steven Smallman confirmed that they were also the applicant and 
agent (respectively) for the application. In addressing the Committee they raised the 
following points:

 Mr Smallman reiterated that there was already extant planning permission on the 
site and therefore informed the Committee of the reasons for submitting another 
application. 

Page 27



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

 It was felt that the option to rebuild provided a much better scheme. The internal 
quality of the build would be better and more sustainable. Carbon emissions from 
the development would be reduced by a third. This was why a salvage and 
redevelopment scheme had been chosen. 

 Mr Smallman commented that even a conversion scheme required compromise. 
Mr Smallman stated that it was not that the buildings were not sound but rather 
that to convert them would cause a significant compromise. 

 There were planning policies around replacement dwellings to limit the impact on 
the countryside and in his view this was what the scheme achieved. 

 A balance needed to be sought that took planning considerations into account 
along with other factors such as improved energy efficiency and a reduced carbon 
footprint. Balance and common sense needed to be applied when considering the 
application. 

 The land had been previously development and no objections to the proposal had 
been received from residents. The Parish Council were in support of the 
application.

 Regarding ecology, normally Phase 1 could be updated however, in this case it 
could not. In order to update Phase 1, it would take three months to update the 
surveys and therefore the applicant wished to know if the proposal could be 
agreed in principle before taking this step. 

 Blewburton Ltd had conducted an energy efficiency survey and compared the 
rebuild and conversion options. 

Member Questions to the Supporters:
Councillor Pask noted that the rebuild option had been chosen due to it being more 
sustainable and energy efficient and queried why this could not be achieved with a 
conversion. Mr Bates confirmed that it could not be achieved due to economic reasons 
and technicalities. He was disappointed that the Planning Officer had been so dismissive 
of the application as they were not experts in the field. 
The Chairman asked Mr Bates to confirm if a conversion could not be achieved because 
of technical or economic reasons and Mr Bates confirmed that both reasons applied. The 
economics were different for both options and a conversion would be worth less than a 
rebuild to a higher standard. The Chairman asked if the conversion scheme could be 
revised to produce the same standard as the rebuild scheme and Mr Bates did not think 
that it could. 
Councillor Alan Macro struggled to see how the bat population on the site would be 
protected if the current buildings were knocked down. Mr Bates stated that they had been 
asked to submit a short update to the previous ecology report but refused. Nine 
investigations would be required to produce a new report, which would take until the end 
of August and if a solution could not be found then development would not commence. 
Mr Smallman stated that a mitigation scheme could be put in place. Councillor Macro 
asked for clarification that if the bats could not be protected then the development would 
not be able to go ahead and Mr Smallman stated that a process would need to take place 
first including nine surveys to determine this. 
Councillor Geoff Mayes presumed that there would be an intention to use some of the old 
tiles for the rebuild if the application was approved. Mr Bates expected that there would 
be enough materials from the three current buildings to build two new ones. Every effort 

Page 28



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

would be made to re-use materials and what could not be used would be recycled in 
other ways. 
The Chairman highlighted that a report from 2017 stated that the current buildings were 
structurally sound. He asked the applicant to confirm if this was still the case and if the 
reason for opting for a rebuild was because it was considered a better solution. Mr Bates 
confirmed that this was correct. 
Member Questions to Officers:
Councillor Cottam was concerned that a precedent had already been set by giving 
permission to use the site. Mr Pearson confirmed that there were a number of exceptions 
with regards to development outside of settlement boundaries, including agricultural 
buildings and conversions. All other residential developments outside of the settlement 
boundaries were subject to the development plan. Permission for conversion to 
residential use had been given and this did not set a precedent for development which 
fell outside of that covered in the specified exceptions. 
The Chairman stated that he had been the Portfolio Holder for Planning when the 
Development Plan Documents had been agreed. The relevant policies had been 
deliberately changed to remove the previously allowed option that allowed redundant 
rural buildings to be replaced with new dwellings. 
Councillor Macro asked if the application submitted in 2018 had been any different to the 
one being considered. Mr Pearson stated that they were almost identical and the former 
application was refused under de-delegated powers. 
Debate:
Councillor Pask stated he had spoken with the Ward Member, Councillor Dominic Boeck, 
who had supported the application and agreed with the comments from the Parish 
Council. Councillor Pask expressed however, that he did not. He highlighted that as a 
planning committee, Members’ were required to interpret policies but not change them. 
He was proud to be part of a plan led authority. Although a rebuild would look the same, 
it was contrary to the policies which had been put in place. Brimpton was not a defined 
settlement and therefore he supported the view of Officers and proposed the Members 
support the Officer recommendation to refuse planning permission. This was seconded 
by Councillor Macro, who was concerned that it would be difficult to protect bat species 
on the site if a salvage and rebuild scheme was approved. 
The Chairman invited Members to vote on the proposal by Councillor Pask, seconded by 
Councillor Macro. At the vote the motion was carried. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to refuse 
planning permission for the following reasons:

1. The application site is located outside of the defined settlement boundary and within 
the open countryside as defined under Policy ADPP1 of the West Berkshire Local 
Plan Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy C1 of the West Berkshire Housing Site 
Allocation Development Plan Document (2006-2026) 2017. The site comprises three 
buildings that have an approved light industrial (Class B1c) use and ancillary storage 
buildings. The proposed works are for the demolition and redevelopment of the three 
light industrial buildings on the existing site to form dwellings and the conversion of 
the existing storage units into office accommodation to form a mixed residential and 
associated office use of the site. The proposed works are situated in a location with 
poor access to local services, amenities and public transport and would result in the 
development of three new dwellings on a site in the countryside, contrary to the 
provisions of Policy C1 of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document 

Page 29



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

2017 which states that there shall be a presumption against new residential 
development outside of the settlement boundaries defined earlier in the policy.

   The housing supply policies of the statutory development plan provide an up-to-date 
framework for the determination of housing applications within West Berkshire, and 
the Council can demonstrate a five year housing land supply. The application 
conflicts with the housing supply policies - Policies ADPP1, ADPP6 and CS1 of the 
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Policy C1 of the Housing Site 
Allocations DPD 2006-2026. The proposal does not fall within any of the defined 
exceptions to the presumption against new residential development outside of the 
settlement boundaries, where only appropriate limited development is allowed. In this 
case the housing supply policies of the development plan attract compelling weight, 
and the modest benefits of the proposal do not outweigh this conflict with policy.

 
2. Due to the lack of an up-to-date Ecological Report and Bat Survey Report, it is not 

possible to accurately (and with any level of certainty) assess that the impact on 
identified Brown Long Eared bate (Plecotus auritus) and the Common Pipistrelle 
(Pipistrellus pipistrelles) would be at the same level as stated in the out-of-date 
(September 2016) reports and that the roosts are still day roosts. As such, the 
Council cannot undertake its duty to have regard to the conservation of biodiversity 
as required by natural Environment and Rural Communities Act of 2006. The 
proposal scheme is also contrary to Core Strategy policy CS17. 

3. The proposed development of three dwellings and associated work units would not 
meet any identified need for additional housing or business units in the countryside or 
provide any significant benefit to the local rural economy such as would justify an 
exception to policy on development in the countryside. No sequential test has been 
submitted to prove a need for a town centre use in the countryside. The above is 
contrary to the roles of sustainable development defined in the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2019 and the requirements of Policy ADPP1 and CS1 of the West 
Berkshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2006-2026) 2012 and C1 of the Housing Sites 
Allocation DPD (2006-2026) 2017, which state that only appropriate limited 
development in the countryside will be allowed, focused on addressing identified 
needs and maintaining a strong rural economy.

(4) Application No. & Parish: 19/00713/COMIND Bere Court Farm 
Bungalow, Bere Court, Pangbourne, Reading RG8 8HT

The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(4)) concerning Planning Application 
19/00713/COMIND in respect of a Section 73A application for the variation of condition 2: 
approved plans of planning permission 16/01419/COMIND.
David Pearson (Development Control Team Leader) introduced the report. He explained 
that the applicant was seeking to regularise the constructed building by removing some 
of the unauthorised development to a level that could be acceptable to the Council. The 
update report provided an updated version of the dimensions table and this showed that 
the appellant proposed to complete the building as originally approved, except for the 
height which would increase by 0.3 metres from the original approval. For clarity, it was 
confirmed that the proposed height would be unchanged from the unauthorised 
development, i.e. 5.9 metres. 
Officers’ recommendation was to grant conditional planning permission. 
The update report also made reference to a request from the applicant for condition one 
to be amended which would extend the timeframe for completing the work from six 

Page 30



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

months to nine months. The Officer view was that six months was a reasonable time for 
the completion of the work. 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr John Higgs, Parish Council 
representative, and Mr Mart Pettitt and Ms Nikki Boughton-Smith, supporters, addressed 
the Committee on this application.
Parish Representation
Mr Higgs in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
The Parish Council objected to this retrospective application. A retrospective application 
was refused in 2018 and there was also a separate refusal not referred to in the planning 
history. 
Both the unauthorised development and this proposal were not in accordance with plans 
approved in 2016. Proposed windows and doors were not shown in the plans, neither 
was having an upper floor. 
Paragraph 5.4 of the Committee report explained that the breach of planning control was 
referred to Planning Enforcement and the enquiry that followed established that the 
building had been constructed as a dwelling. A dwelling had not been permitted and the 
development should be as per the plans. 
Mr Higgs queried what guarantee could be given that the development, if approved, 
would adhere to the plans. 
Supporter Representation (it was clarified that Mr Pettitt was in fact the agent and Ms 
Boughton-Smith the partner of the applicant)
Mr Pettitt in addressing the Committee raised the following points:
The conditions of the August 2016 permission had been discharged, with the exception 
that the development had not been built in accordance with the approved plans. This 
application was to regularise the constructed building and make it acceptable to the 
Council. 
Subject to approval of this application, the build would be in accordance with plans. The 
building would not be used as a dwelling, the need remained for the new stable block and 
farm machinery store. 
The applicant was content with the conditions recommended by officers and the 
accompanying restrictions on the building’s use. The required alterations to the building 
would be completed within the prescribed timeframe. 
No letters of objection had been received to this application and approval was sought as 
recommended by Officers. 
Member Questions to Supporters
Councillor Jeremy Cottam queried the machinery that would be stored. Ms Boughton-
Smith explained that this was a number of tractors and equipment which were ancillary to 
the garden and the growth of vegetables. 
Councillor Graham Pask queried the reference made by the Parish to other refused 
applications on the site. Ms Boughton-Smith advised that many different scenarios had 
been considered for the site over time. Mr Pettitt reiterated the point that this application 
would regularise the development and the applicant was willing to make the necessary 
changes to the constructed building so that it accorded with plans. 

Page 31



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Councillor Alan Law sought confirmation that as the upper floor was not included in the 
plans it would be removed. Ms Boughton-Smith confirmed this. Mr Pettitt stated that the 
development would be in accordance with the plans. 
Councillor Geoff Mayes queried the ability to complete the work within six months. Ms 
Boughton-Smith advised that this would be difficult, but would be adhered to. She 
explained that an extension to nine months had been sought as the build of a new house 
(a separate planning permission) was about to commence. The extension would have 
avoided the two developments running concurrently. 
Member Questions to Officers
Councillor Pask queried why the full planning history was not detailed in the report. Mr 
Pearson explained that only the relevant history had been included, i.e. in relation to the 
original consent in 2016 and subsequent variations. 
Mr Pearson clarified that the application, if approved, would result in the build being 
completed in accordance with the approved plans for a single storey building, with all 
works to be completed within six months. Enforcement Officers would be asked to 
inspect the building to ensure this was adhered to. 
Debate
Councillor Tony Linden proposed approval of Officers’ recommendation to grant planning 
permission subject to conditions. This was seconded by Councillor Geoff Mayes. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions:
Conditions
1. Amendment time limit
The approved amendments to the constructed stable building hereby permitted shall be 
carried out within 6 months from the date of this permission. 

Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the 
development against Policies ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006 - 2026 should it not be started within a reasonable time.

2. Approved plans

The development hereby approved shall be completed in accordance with drawing Nos. 
03 and E01 REVISION 01 received on 11 July 2019.

Reason:  To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted 
details assessed against Policy ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006-2026.

3. Materials

The materials to be used in this development shall be as specified on the plans or the 
application forms. No other materials shall be used unless prior permission in writing has 
been obtained from the Local Planning Authority in respect of a planning application.

Page 32



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Policy CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

4.  External lighting 

The external lighting used in the development shall be in accordance with the approved 
external lighting details approved under discharge of condition application 
16/02699/COND1. There shall be no further external lighting to that approved with the 
permitted condition discharge application unless permission has been granted by the 
local planning authority in respect of a planning application.

Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and to protect the dark night skies character of 
the AONB. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Policies ADPP5, CS14, CS17 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

5.  Private recreational equestrian purposes 

Irrespective of the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
2015 (as amended) and any subsequent revision, the application site area and 
development permitted, shall only be used for private recreational equestrian purposes 
and shall not be used for any other purpose including commercial riding, liveries, 
breeding or training or any other non-equestrian use.

Reason:  A commercial/business use may not be appropriate for this site.  This condition 
is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies 
ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

6. Spoil removal

The spoil removal from the site shall be completed in accordance with the approved spoil 
removal details approved under discharge of condition application 16/02699/COND1. All 
spoil arising from the development shall be used and/or disposed of in accordance with 
the approved details. 

Reason:  To ensure appropriate disposal of spoil from the development and to ensure 
that any raising of ground levels on the site will not harm the character and amenity of the 
area. In accordance with the NPPF and Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026.

7. No additional floor space including a Mezzanine floor

Notwithstanding the provisions of either the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that order, with or without modification) and the Town and Country Planning 
(Use Classes) Order 2015 (as amended) and any subsequent revision, there shall be no 

Page 33



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 AUGUST 2019 - MINUTES

internal or external alterations including any mezzanine flooring to increase the floor 
space of the building, without the permission of the local planning authority in respect of a 
planning application.

Reason:  To retain control over the uses on the site and their intensification, particularly 
having regard to the limited parking space available and to enable these matters to be 
assessed against the policies of the development plan. This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies ADPP5, CS5, CS13 
and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006- 2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the 
West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

15. Site Visits
A date of 21 August 2019 at 9.30am was agreed for site visits if necessary (held in the 
morning on this occasion due to District Planning Committee being held in the evening). 
This was in advance of the next Eastern Area Planning Committee scheduled for 28 
August 2019. 

(The meeting commenced at 6.30pm and closed at 9.30pm)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….

Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 34



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

Item 
No.

Application No. 
and Parish

8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant

(1) 19/00031/FUL 

Woolhampton

29th March 2019.

Eot - 30th August 
2019.  

Retrospective application. Erection of 2 day 
rooms, 2 mobile homes, and 2 touring 
caravans, for occupation by gypsies/travellers. 
Creation of new access onto highway and 
hardstanding. Erection of fencing

Land west of Hill Place, Bath Road, 
Woolhampton

Tammy Black and James Tombs
     

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=19/00031/FUL

Ward Member(s): Councillor Graham Pask

Reason for Committee 
determination:

The Council has received in excess of 10 objections to the 
application

Committee Site Visit:

Recommendation.

10th July 2019

The Head of Development and Planning be authorised 
to GRANT planning permission   

Contact Officer Details
Name: Michael Butler 
Job Title: Principal Planning Officer 
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: michael.butler@westberks.gov.uk

Page 35

Agenda Item 4.(1)

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=19/00031/FUL
mailto:michael.butler@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

1. Site History

18/02751/FUL. Similar application to current one. Found to be invalid. 

2. Publicity of Application

Site notice displayed. 6th February 2019. Expiry 27th February 2019. 
Amended description - amended site notice - displayed 14th June 2019, expiry 5th July 2019. 

3. Consultations and Representations
 

Woolhampton Parish 
Council 

Objection. Work has already commenced on site. Application site is 
greenfield outside defined settlement boundary. Not a preferred 
gypsy site in the Local Plan. No change of use noted in the 
application description. No details of sewerage disposal and details 
of flooding. Two day rooms could become additional bedrooms. Has 
the Council given agreement for access onto the layby?   

Highways No objections to the application. The access, whilst retrospective, is 
acceptable, subject to conditions. Adequate space on site to 
satisfactorily accommodate parking and turning for the day rooms 
etc as proposed. Level of additional traffic movements is acceptable 
onto the A4 adjacent. Conditional permission is recommended.   

Environment Agency No objections. The application site does not lie in an area subject to 
any flooding risk, taking into account that caravan sites, being 
residential, are more vulnerable uses. [Officer comment-the land has 
been raised in any event ]

Office for nuclear 
regulation

No safeguarding objections, unless the emergency planners indicate 
otherwise. [Officer note - no objections from the council’s emergency 
officer.] 

Thames Water On the basis that no foul water or surface water will be discharged 
into the public network, TW have no objections. If this were to alter, 
TW should be re consulted. In addition mains water infrastructure 
crosses the site. No structures should lie within 3m of these mains.     

SUDS Request additional information be submitted to the Council before 
permission may be granted. Off- site drainage is important in the 
area given the proximity of two SSSIs. Following detailed 
submissions conditional permission is recommended. 

Network Rail No objections. Recommend conditional permission on drainage and 
stability of land raised. 

Planning policy Comprehensive response on file. The report below sets out this in 
more detail. Notwithstanding the fact that the application site was 
greenfield outside any defined settlement boundary, given the 
Council requirement to allocate/permit additional pitches prior to the 
end of 2019, and the fact that the site generally complies with the 
advice in Policy TS3, the application may be approved.

Environmental Health -
Licencing

The caravan site, if permitted will require a licence from the Council. 
Matters to be included are appropriate water supply, drainage, 
access, boundary treatment, electrical supply, noise from the A4, 

Page 36



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

.  

4. Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 2019
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014.
DCLG -Planning Policy for Traveller Sites. August 2015.[PPTS] 
Written Ministerial Statement on unauthorised encampments. August 2015. 
MHCLG -Response of Government on powers for dealing with unauthorised development and 
encampments. February 2019.   
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 2026.Policy CS7 - Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Show 
People.
HSADPD of May 2017. Policy TS3.
 

5. Description of development

5.1. Firstly, to make it clear, the application is almost entirely retrospective as members who 
attended the site visit will have noted.  Secondly, whilst the initial description of the application 
made no specific reference to the site being occupied by gypsies/travellers, this has now been 
rectified, and in addition, if the application is approved by the Committee, this specific type of 
occupation will be clearly conditioned. In order to ensure no third party or consultee was 
disadvantaged by this amended description the Council formally re advertised the application by 
way of an amended site notice for three weeks - see above. The period has now expired.    

5.2. The application site lies to the south of the existing layby adjacent the A4 in Woolhampton. It 
was a greenfield site, and remains outside the defined settlement boundary of the village. The site 
lies immediately adjacent to an approved affordable housing scheme recently completed. In 
addition it lies to the north of the existing rail line. The land has been raised and enclosed, with a 
new vehicular access off the layby as noted. On the site lies two mobile homes, two touring 
caravans and a shed. Two dayrooms are proposed in addition. Each dayroom will be single storey 
and have a toilet and utility area. The site will accommodate two families, who apparently own the 
site in question. The site is 55m in width and at its maximum, 40m in depth. In addition, although 
the site has been raised, it still lies at a considerably lower level than the layby to the north, but 
higher than the rail line to the south. Finally, to the west of the application site lies open agricultural 

and from the rail line adjacent and domestic waste storage. 
The application site [without prejudice] is capable of being an 
acceptable site subject to the above provisions being met. ie no 
underlying objections.  

Public representations 36 objections have been received to the application, none in 
support.
Concerns are as follows. Site was greenfield, is outside the 
settlement boundary of the village, flooding and drainage problems, 
why is the application retrospective? It is not an allocated housing 
site, nor is it a preferred area for a gypsy/traveller site. Extra traffic 
impact on layby. Development is currently unauthorised. Not 
acceptable - abuse of planning regulations. Could the site be 
extended into the future? Might become a commercial storage site in 
addition for business purposes. If permission is granted would set a 
precedent. What of the land to the west of the application site? 
Impact on surrounding amenity, visual impact in addition. Day rooms 
could become additional toilets and/or bedrooms in the future. The 
site location is inappropriate - lacks suitable facilities. Increased 
propensity for runoff pollution into River Kennet adjacent. Poor 
access. Highway safety compromised. Application should be 
refused.  

Page 37



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

land. An existing hedgerow abuts the northern boundary, whilst fencing of approximately 2m in 
height surrounds the remainder of the site, which is to be further landscaped and the fence painted 
green should planning permission be granted. 

5.3. The application site does not lie in any special landscape designation, such as the AONB or 
conservation area.   

6. Consideration of the application 

The application will be considered under the following matters.

1. Policy and principle.
2. Intentional unauthorised development 
3. Comments on objectors concerns.
4. Human rights. 

  

1.  Policy and principle

6.1.1. In 2015 the Government published the PPTS [see above]. This sets out in some detail the 
national planning policy which Councils should adhere to in respect of determining planning 
applications for gypsies and travellers. Local Planning Authorities should be fair, inclusive and 
realistic in applying policies, whilst promoting private traveller site provision where appropriate. 
Their own assessment of planning need in each District is also required, which should be 
continually monitored and updated. Finally, due regard should be had to the protection of the local 
environment, tensions where possible between the applicants and the local settled community 
should be resolved, and access to local facilities for the travellers made possible. Finally any under 
provision of sites should be addressed, so maintaining a reasonable level of supply. [Paragraph 4].

6.1.2. In addition the Council must take into account the evidence from the applicants as to their 
particular need for accommodation in the area, and for rural sites [such as the current application] 
the scale of the site should not dominate the local settled community. In determining applications 
[para 24] Councils should consider the following: the existing level of local provision, the availability 
[or lack of] suitable alternative sites, and other relevant personal circumstances of the proposed 
occupier/applicants. Crucially, in the context of this application, the PPTS allows for, in criterion d] 
of para 24, that locally specific criteria can be applied to unallocated sites, which may come 
forward as has happened here. Finally, even if a traveller has no local connections to the area, 
applications should still be considered. Policy TS3 in the HSADPD accordingly allows for this 
circumstance, as does CS7 in the Core Strategy.  

6.1.3. What is most significant [in the view of officers] is the advice in paragraph 27 of the PPTS. 
This notes that if a LPA cannot demonstrate an up to date 5 year housing land supply for 
deliverable gypsy sites, then this is a significant material consideration in determining planning 
applications –and applying a temporary permission. The current application site does not lie in an 
area that has special landscape designation (such as the AONB], which would preclude such 
weight being attached to a decision on this application. Finally LPA’s should consider how 
objections to a site might be overcome by the application of necessary planning conditions which 
can include specifying the number of caravans on the site, specifying occupants and limiting any 
possible business use. 

6.1.4 Policy CS7 in the Core Strategy sets out a range of criteria which need to be examined in 
determining planning applications. Without repeating the advice in the PPTS, these include safe 
and easy access to local highways, and to local facilities such as schools and shops plus public 
transport, the compatibility of the new use with adjoining users, impact on the area visually, located 
outside an area of high flood risk, and the possibility of adequate on site provision for parking, 
storage, play and amenity.

Page 38



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

6.1.5 Policy TS3 in the HSADPD sets out in much greater detail the above criteria to be applied. 
This includes SUDs /ecological implications, drainage and water supply, landscaping and foul 
water discharge. These points relate more to the future merit of the site being licenced under 
separate legislation, as identified in the Environmental Health response. 

6.1.6  Clearly there are many pertinent criteria which the Committee will need to take into account 
in determining this application, but the most significant issue [in officers’ view] is the number of 
pitches approved by the Council over the period 2011 to 2019 as set out in the HSADPD - 4 are 
required. To date only one pitch has been approved, which was allowed at appeal in December 
2013 at Beenham [12/01547/FULD] which was delivered in 2014. Accordingly the Council requires 
an additional 3 pitches, before the end of this year if its target is to be met. So, if this application is 
approved this will mean only one more pitch is required to be authorised, prior to the end of this 
year. This is important given the advice in para 27 of the PPTS which inevitably an Inspector at 
appeal will take full account of should this application be refused. Entirely without prejudice it is 
almost inevitable that any refusal will be appealed, given the retrospective nature of the scheme 
and the fact that the applicants own the site in question. 

6.1.7. In terms of the other policy criteria the following is considered to be relevant, by officers, in 
the Council determination of the proposal. 

1.  It is not an offence in planning law to submit a retrospective application although it is of course 
made entirely at the owner’s risk. Accordingly the Committee should not take this into account, 
subject to the advice on intentional unauthorised development set out later in this report.
2.  The application does not propose any business / mixed commercial use - if it did it would be 
likely to be harmful to local amenity and so not acceptable given the proximity of housing to the 
east.
3.  The scale of the scheme is “small” in relation to the local settled community, at just 2 pitches –
again if approved this will be conditioned. As a percentage of the population of Woolhampton 
parish the occupation by the 9 persons involved is low.  
4.  Officers are satisfied that the gypsies who are the applicants are genuine in their needs and 
indeed originate from local families in the North Hampshire/Tadley area. The applicants [two 
couples] have children who are in need of schooling being of that age [5 number].  They have been 
searching for appropriate accommodation in the area for about 2 years. The applicant’s agent was 
formally requested to provide additional evidence in support of this claim and this has been 
supplied. Children of both applicants attend Tadley School and both male partners work across the 
South East in construction living away for periods at a time, in order to provide income.  This status 
is important since should the Council elect to approve the application, the justification will need to 
be based on the fact that the applicants are genuine members of the local travelling community.
5.  The highways officer is content with the application in terms of access, parking and turning 
area, and traffic generation, so no objections are raised in this respect. The access direct onto the 
layby is actually preferential to an access direct onto the A4 since the layby enjoys good forward 
visibility onto the main highway in both directions for vehicles entering and exiting the A4. It is also 
most unlikely given the scale of the application site that any additional pressures for parking on the 
highway will be caused and it is believed that this has not occurred to date.
6.  There are no objections to the application on ecological terms, or heritage impact. There are no 
sites of special scientific interest adjoining the application site which could be detrimentally 
impacted [subject to the drainage situation being examined carefully], and there are no 
conservation areas or listed buildings in the vicinity which could be damaged or harmed. This is 
noted in regard to policy CS19 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.
7.  The site is well contained visually, being set at a lower level than adjacent land uses such as 
the affordable housing and the layby. In addition, it lies in no special landscape designation. 
Accordingly with the additional landscaping and fence painting which is proposed to be 
conditioned, it is considered, on balance, that this aspect of the development is acceptable.  
Officers have had close regard to the advice in policy CS19 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026 in 
relation to this. The only place where the site is relatively prominent is when it is viewed from 
travellers on the adjacent rail line.    

Page 39



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

8.  The application site lies outside any area of high flood risk, and the EA have chosen not to 
comment on the application, albeit they were consulted. Accordingly it is considered that the 
application complies with the advice in policy CS16 in the WBCS. However the SUDS risk must be 
adequately considered in this context. 
9.  The location of the application site is considered by your officers to be “good” in relation to local 
schools [eg Aldermaston], shops as at Woolhampton, and so forth ie it is not in an isolated 
location. Bus services are frequent along the A4 and the train station lies some one mile to the 
west. Accordingly, having regard to the advice in both the PPTS and the Councils’ own policy 
advice for new traveller site applications, it is considered that should the application be approved 
the likelihood of the current and future occupants [should that alter as the permission if granted will 
not be personal] being able to access such health and educational opportunities will be acceptable. 
10.  The PPTS makes it clear that even if a site is not formally allocated through the Local Plan 
process, it can still be acceptable in principle if it meets the necessary criteria.
11.  Network Rail have been formally consulted upon the application given the site lies immediately 
adjacent to land in their ownership. They have responded by raising objections, but recommend 
conditional permission. 

6.1.8. Given all of the above, it is considered that whilst the retrospective aspect of the application 
is regrettable, the scheme nonetheless is acceptable in planning policy terms. 

2 Intentional unauthorised development. 
 

7.1.1 Some of the objectors to the application have identified the requirement that the Council, as 
Local Planning Authority, when determining the application, must have regard to the latest 
Government advice on this issue as a material planning consideration, in relation to unauthorised 
encampments. In addition the latest appeal decisions in relation to the issue should also be taken 
into account.

7.1.2. Firstly, in 2015 the Government introduced a policy which specifically made intentional 
unauthorised development a material consideration in the planning sphere. This was via a Written 
Ministerial Statement from the then Secretary of State. The Government was, and is concerned 
that where harm is caused by development of land in advance of obtaining planning permission, 
there is no opportunity to limit or mitigate the harm already created. This can then cause extensive 
and expensive action by Authorities, in taking enforcement action. The Government is presently 
consulting on future options for strengthening this policy, but this process has not been concluded 
as yet. It does note that confidence and fairness in the planning system must prevail in a civilised 
society, and no one small minority group should have special protection, unless this is clearly 
based in planning law and advice/guidance, in respect of special needs. This relates clearly to the 
travelling community.

7.1.3 It is patently apparent that the present unauthorised occupation of the land was intentional 
and the applicants knew no planning permission existed on the site.  So the above advice applies 
and the intentional occupation of the land without planning permission is a material consideration.

7.1.4 An appeal decision has been brought to the Council’s attention in relation to this issue. It is 
reference APP/ Q3630/W/18/3200398. It relates to a gypsy site Ada’s Farm in Chertsey, and the 
decision letter date was the 9 May 2019. The appeal was dismissed. In the decision, the question 
of intentional unauthorised development was examined. The Inspector noted that there was a 
perception in the travelling community that given the difficulties in obtaining planning permission on 
non-allocated sites in a Local Plan, due to public opposition, a retrospective application was the 
best way forward and provided an advantage in ultimately obtaining permission - an issue which 
the Government, in the interests of transparency and fairness, wishes to actively discourage.

7.1.5 The Inspector found on this particular occasion that since the site both lay in the Green Belt 
and was substantial [13 plots and about 1.5ha of land] and the unauthorised development had 

Page 40



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

meant no assessment of the proposal against Local Plan policies the harm to the character and 
openness of the Green Belt was unacceptable. Accordingly the intentional nature of the scheme 
was accorded substantial adverse weight in the planning balance. As it was he rejected the appeal, 
presumably at least in part in recognition of this factor. 

7.1.6 However, it does not automatically follow that all such retrospective applications should be 
rejected. In the present case, clearly the LPA has not been afforded the opportunity of assessing 
the application against its own policies [CS7 and TS3] or against the PPTS prior to the use 
commencing. In addition though, all planning applications must be considered on their own 
individual merits: in this case the site does not lie in a Green Belt or AONB designation, the site is 
small in relation to the nature and character of adjoining land uses, and it is clear that the Council 
is required by its own policies to meet an identified housing need of 3 more pitches this year, if the 
target is to be achieved. Accordingly, the officer view in considering the planning balance in 
relation to this issue, is that approval is justified for the reasons set out in the report.  It is of course 
regrettable that any retrospective applications occur, but the visual harm caused by this application 
can be mitigated by condition.
   
3.  Comment on objectors’ concerns/conditions

8.1.1. It is hoped that this report should help to allay most of the objectors’ concerns about this 
particular application. In addition, the following is relevant. It is considered that no harmful 
precedent will be set if this application is approved for any expansion of the site to the west. This 
land is presently under separate ownership in any event and it is a well-established point of 
planning guidance that each application must be treated on its own individual merits.

8.1.2.  The NPPF in paragraph 56 notes that for conditions to be acceptable they must be a] 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, b] directly related to the 
development and c] fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the scheme. In this regard 
the Committee should be made aware that the applicants have noted they would accept a personal 
permission on the site and a temporary one if the Council thought fit. Officers have carefully 
considered this matter and have concluded that neither condition would meet all of the three tests 
in the NPPF. This is because whilst one of the justifications for approving the application is the 
educational needs of the applicant’s children [ie the personal aspect] this is not the sole 
justification, for recommending approval.  ie if another gypsy family were to occupy the site, it 
would still remain acceptable in planning terms. Secondly, given the general suitability of the site in 
physical terms, it is not considered that a 3 year temporary permission is necessary to allow 
approval to be granted, ie the site is considered suitable for a permanent permission. 

8.1.3. By way of explanation, given that the application is retrospective, some of the conditions 
necessarily will need to be time limited post the decision date - this is reflected in the wording of 
the conditions below. If they are not adhered to, enforcement action could then be taken in the 
form of serving of breach of conditions notices.

4  Human Rights 

9.1.1 The Committee will no doubt be aware of the European Convention on Human Rights. Article 
8 of the first protocol relates to the Right to respect for private and family life. This in turn 
corresponds to how public authorities, in determining planning applications [inter alia] should 
respect such rights of travellers and gypsies in obtaining reasonable shelter and living conditions, 
for successful family life. However, the Article also notes that the right given by this article can be 
interfered with if other issues arise in, for example, national security or the freedom and rights of 
others. In this instance accordingly, the Committee will need to make a balanced judgement on 
whether an approval would so interfere with the rights and freedoms of the settled community of 
the Parish, as suggested by the 36 objections, that an exception may be made in relation to the 
human rights of the applicants [and future potential occupiers] of the site: undoubtedly if refused 
the applicants over time may well become homeless. Your officers in this particular case, having 
regard to the lack of immediate environmental or amenity harm caused by the development, 

Page 41



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

consider that Article 8 should, in relation to the applicants rights and needs, be afforded due 
weight.

10. Conclusion

10.1. The NPPF makes it clear that all applications must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless there are material considerations which would mean a different view 
being taken. This is set out in the 2004 Act, Section 36. The PPTS, which is an adjunct to the 
NPPF, makes it clear that exceptions to “normal” restrictive planning policies for protection of the 
rural areas may be made, when considering gypsy and traveller sites. Much the same exception is 
made [for example] when rural exception sites for affordable dwellings is made in villages - see 
policy C2 in the HSADPD of 2017. In this instance it is concluded that the application complies with 
the criteria in both the PPTS and the Development Plan. It is also concluded that, having taken full 
account of the other two material considerations which apply [ie intentional unauthorised 
development and human rights] the application meets these tests, and is capable of a conditional 
approval. 

10.2. In addition, all planning applications should be considered against the three principles of 
sustainability in the NPPF.  In economic terms the application will have little impact, albeit local 
spending in the community may rise slightly. In terms of impact of the occupants on the local 
facilities and services of the Council, it is understood that Council Tax is being charged, and the 
application will be CIL liable since it involves C3 space.  In social terms the application may 
[without prejudice] raise local concerns in the area, but balanced against this is the benefit of 
providing suitable accommodation for the travelling community, meaning that pressure for future 
unauthorised encampments in the District [and beyond] may be reduced. There is also the Human 
Rights of the applicants to consider, in particular with reference to the education of the five children 
involved. Finally, in environmental terms the application is considered to have little impact. Visually 
it is well contained, albeit some impact is notable from private views to the west. The amenity and 
highways impacts are considered to be acceptable for the reasons set out above. The drainage 
issues have also been resolved satisfactorily, subject to conditions.

10.3. On balance, taking all the above mentioned policies and mentioned considerations into 
account, the application is recommended for approval subject to conditions.

11. Recommendation  

11.1. The Head of Development and Planning be authorised to GRANT conditional planning 
permission.

CONDITIONS  

Plans 

1. The development must remain in accordance with the as approved plans - JOO3121-
CD01-REV A, JOO3121–CD02-REV A, JOO3121-CD03-REV C, and JOO-CD04.

Reason. To clarify the permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.

Limitation of development 

2. At no time shall more than 2 mobile homes, 2 touring units and 2 day rooms be located on 
the application site.

Page 42



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

Reason. The Council considers that any increase in the number of caravans/ mobile homes/ day 
rooms on the site may amount to an over-development. This would be contrary to policy CS7 of the 
WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

Revisions.

3. Within 3 months of the grant of this permission, the applicant shall ensure that the 
development is completed in accord with the revised block plan number CD03-Rev C. In 
addition within 1 month of the date of this permission a landscaping plan for the western 
buffer shall be submitted to the LPA for consideration. On approval such a plan shall be 
planted out to the satisfaction of the LPA within the next available planting season.

Reason. To enhance the visual aspects of the site in accord with policy CS19 in the WBCS of 2006 
to 2026. 

Access gates. 

4. Within two months of the date of this permission the access gates where vehicles enter or 
leave the site, shall open away from the adjoining highway and be set back a distance of at 
least 5 metres from the edge of the highway.

Reason: In the interest of road safety and to ensure that vehicles can be driven off the highway 
before the gates are opened. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework, and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

Surfacing. 

5. Within two months of the date of this permission, details of the surfacing arrangements for 
the vehicular access to the highway must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Such details shall ensure that bonded material is used across the 
entire width of the access for a distance of 3 metres measured back from the carriageway 
edge. Thereafter [within one month of the approval of the details], the surfacing 
arrangements shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To avoid migration of loose material onto the highway in the interest of road safety. This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy
CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

Occupation. 

6. The site hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any time other than by Gypsies and 
Travellers as defined in Annex 1 of Planning Policy for Traveller Sites /MHCLG].

Reason. Residential use of this site has only been allowed to cater for the specific needs of the 
Gypsy and Traveller Community in accordance with Policy CS7 in the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006 to 2026).

No commercial use. 

7. No commercial use or activities shall take place within the application site at any time, 
including the storage of any materials. In addition, no vehicle over 3.5 tonnes shall be 
stationed, parked or stored on the application site.

Reason. To protect the amenity of adjacent dwellings; to introduce B2/ B8 uses or other 
commercial uses, next to these dwellings would be harmful to their amenity and not in accord with 
the advice in the NPPF 2019. 

Page 43



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

Lighting. 

8. No external lighting shall be installed on the site at any time unless a planning application 
for that purpose is submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. Once approved, the 
lighting must be erected in accordance with the approved details and thereafter maintained 
in accordance with them.

Reason. The site lies in the rural area where additional lighting would be harmful, in accord with 
the advice in para 180 of the NPPF.

Noise.

9. A scheme for protecting the occupiers of the two mobile homes from noise from traffic on 
the  adjacent roads and from noise and vibration from the railway lines shall be submitted to 
the local planning authority within 3 months of date of this permission. Any works which 
form part of the scheme approved by the authority, shall be completed within 6 months of 
date of this permission, unless an alternative period is agreed in writing by the authority.

Reason: Without such a scheme, occupiers of the development are likely to suffer from noise 
caused by the traffic and rail line to an unacceptable degree. In accordance with the advice in 
policy OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan (1991 to 2006).

Fencing - colour. 

10. Within 2 months of the date of this permission, the external facing elevations of the west 
and south perimeter boundary fences shall be painted a dark green colour previously 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

Reason. To ensure the visual impact of the new fencing is reduced in accord with the advice in 
policy CS19 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026. 

Suds 

11 Within 3 months of the date of this permission, details of sustainable drainage measures to 
manage surface water within the site must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

These details shall:

a) Include and be informed by a ground investigation survey which establishes the soil 
characteristics and groundwater levels to confirm the principles applied are feasible in 
practice;
b) Include flood water exeedance routes, both on and off site; Include flow routes such as 
low flow, overflow and exeedance routes;
c) Include details of how the SuDS measures will be maintained and managed in 
perpetuity.   

Once approved by the Council, these sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details within a further 3 months of the date of that 
approval.  The sustainable drainage measures shall be maintained in the approved 
condition thereafter.

Reason:   To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; to prevent the 
increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, habitat and amenity and ensure 
future maintenance of the surface water drainage system can be, and is carried out in an 
appropriate and efficient manner.  This condition is applied in accordance with the National 

Page 44



West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 28 August 2019

Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and 
Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006). 

12. Removal of shed. 
 

Within one month of the date of this permission, the unauthorised storage shed on the site 
shall be removed in its entirety and the site left in a neat and tidy condition.

Reason.   To ensure no proliferation of structures on the site other than those permitted by the 
Council, in accord with policy CS19 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026.

Land stability.

13. Within three months from the date of this grant of approval, a site investigation of the nature 
and extent of any land instability must be carried out, in accordance with a methodology 
which shall have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the local planning 
authority. If any land instability issues are found during the site investigation, a report 
specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the 
development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved 
measures, within 3 months of the date of approval of the agreed scheme.

Reason. To ensure the site will not impact valued infrastructure in accord with policy CS5 in the 
WBCS of 2006 to 2026.   

Drainage 

14. No surface water shall be discharged onto Network Rail land, and no soakaways, 
attenuation ponds or other drainage infrastructure shall be within 5 metres of the boundary 
to the adjacent railway land.

 
Reason.   To protect valued infrastructure in accord with policy CS5 in the WBCS of 2006 to 2026. 

Informatives.

Standard NPPF clause, CIL, and no encroachment onto Network Rail Land. 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty 's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings .

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

Not Set

04 July 2019

1:6872

19/00031/FUL

Land West Of Hill Place, Bath Rd, Woolhampton. RG7 5FL

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



 !"#$%"#&%&'"()#*$%'+!+,"#-%-.%'+/.'-$%
$012)--+&%-.%3"$-+'#%4'+"% !"##)#*%5.22)--++%

%

%
%

"-%-:+%5"!B.-%5+#-'+C%D)*:,)+(%E.FF%G.7"!%
4,+#0+HC%5"!B.-@%

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

%
%

IJK%LM%NMOP%QR%SKRTURSJQKR%VQJW%JWM%XOQR%OYMRPOZ%
%
%
%
%

[\]̂_]%̀ab]c%
%

d%e\\%fĝhìj_%̂g]%kali]f%̂b%em%̂̀ f%kà_]no]̀b\p%̂g]%̀ab%_k̂\̂q\]%
%

d%ra_b%g]\]ŝ b̀%l\̂̀ _%t̂s]%q]]̀%ìk\of]f%u%tah]s]gv%ì%_aw]%k̂_]_v%ib%
ŵ p%q]%̀]k]__̂gp%xag%bt]%k̂_]%axxik]g%ba%ŵ y]%̂%_]\]kbià%

%

d%e\\%fĝhìj_%̂g]%̂ŝi\̂q\]%ba%si]h%̂b%hhhzh]_bq]gy_zjaszoy%%
%

d%{t]%̂ll\ik̂bià%xi\]_%hi\\%q]%̂ŝi\̂q\]%xag%t̂\x%̂̀ %taog%q]xag]%bt]%w]]bìj%
%

Wednesday 28th August 2019
 at 6:30pm

Page 49



 
 

!"#$$$%!#&'( 
()*+ ,-./ 01 2344 

54)6- 
7)/8 9:)+ 

,::48);</:* 
9-)+3*= 
7->?.83>- 

 

Page 50



 
!""#"$%&

'
(
)
 
*+
,
(
-

.
$
/01
/

2

.
'

3
3
45
6

7

2

8

,
9:
;
$
;
%
&
*<
=
9>
&
/
?*@%
A*B
9C
D
;
*B
C
#
/
9!E
F
G*H
I
2
8
4*(
""*9!E
F
GJ
*9&
J
&
9>
&
:
4*.
!%
&
;
%
&
*;
=
6
1
&
9*2
I
I
I
H
H
5
K
H

L

M

M
NOP
*Q
R
ST
ONR
U
*V
WT
U

X
***YT
U
*Z
[
\
]
***M
NOP
*̂
R
_
Ù
T
ab
*X
c
P
Ù
P̀

d
P
e
**f
T
OP
***********f

P
gSaNh

ONR
U

f
aT
i
U
*̂
b

j
k
P
Sl
P̀

f
T
OP

j
WNP
U
O

V
aR
mP
SO

M
ST
WP

n
NOWP

f
aT
i
NU
o
p*q
R
p

n
p*[
\
r
s
r
*Z
Z
t
r
\
\

u
p*[
\
r
s
r
*Z
Z
v
s
\
\

i
i
i
pi
gh
T
pSR
p_
l

f
R
*U
R
O*gST

WP
*waR
c
*Ok
Ng*̀
aT
i
NU
o
x*P
y
SP
h
O*wR
a*h
WT
U
U
NU
o
*h
_
ah
R
gP
gp

X
U
b
*̀
NgSaP

h
T
U
SNP
g*T
aP
*OR
*z
P
*aP
h
R
aOP̀
*OR
*L
M
*V
WT
U
U
NU
o
*{
*X
aSk
NOP
SO_
aP
p

d
P
wP
a*OR
*M
Oa_
SO_
aT
W*|
U
o
NU
P
P
ag*̀
P
OT
NWg*wR

a*gOa_
SO_
aT
W*̀
P
gNo
U
*SaNOP

aNT
p

n
k
Ng*̀
aT
i
NU
o
*aP
c
T
NU
g*Ok
P
*SR
h
b
aNo
k
O*R
w*L
M
*V
WT
U
U
NU
o
*{
*X
aSk
NOP
SO_
aP
p

T̂
U
SaR
wO*d
R
T̀
x

d
P
No
T
OP

M
_
aaP
b
p*d
}
Z
*r
d
V

|
_
aR
h
P
*}
R
_
gP

d
P
e
p

~
SO�*Z
[
\
�

YYdL̂
\
�\
Z
t
[
�
X
s

�
a*M
*̂
WT
Sl

T̂
Ok
*V
R
Ù

L
R
R
Wk
T
c
h
OR
U

d
P
T̀
NU
o
x*d
�
r
*t
d
}

M
NOP
*Q
R
ST
ONR
U
*V
WT
U

Y[
[
s
\
Z
\
*�*j
f
[
\
X

Page 51



 
!""#"$%&

'
$
!"

(

)

(

*

+
,
!-
.!/
0
12
!3
4
&
516
&
/
%
&

7
8
9
11:
;
<8
11111111111:

8
=>?@A

<@B
C

:
?;
D
C
1E
F

G
H
8
>I
8
J

:
;
<8

G
K@8
C
<

L
?B
M8
><

N
>;
K8

O
@<K8

:
?;
D
@C
P
Q1R
B
Q

O
Q1S
T
U
V
U
1W
W
X
U
T
T

Y
Q1S
T
U
V
U
1W
W
Z
V
T
T

D
D
D
QD
=A
;
Q>B
Q[
I

:
B
1C
B
<1=>;

K8
1\?B
]
1<H
@=1J
?;
D
@C
P̂
18
_
>8
A
<1\B
?1A
K;
C
C
@C
P
1A
[
?A
B
=8
=Q

C̀
F
1J
@=>?8

A
;
C
>@8
=1;
?8
1<B
1a
8
1?8
A
B
?<8
J
1<B
1b
N
1L
K;
C
C
@C
P
1c
1̀
?>H
@<8
><[
?8
Q

7
8
\8
?1<B
1N
<?[
><[
?;
K1d
C
P
@C
8
8
?=1J
8
<;
@K=1\B

?1=<?[
><[
?;
K1J
8
=@P
C
1>?@<8

?@;
Q

O
H
@=1J
?;
D
@C
P
1?8
]
;
@C
=1<H
8
1>B
A
F
?@P
H
<1B
\1b
N
1L
K;
C
C
@C
P
1c
1̀
?>H
@<8
><[
?8
Q

E
;
C
>?B
\<17
B
;
Ĵ

7
8
@P
;
<8

N
[
??8
F
Q17
e
W
1U
7
L

d
[
?B
A
8
1e
B
[
=8

7
8
9
Q

f
><g1W
S
T
h

ii7

E
b

T
jX
S
S
k
V̀

l
?1N
1E
K;
>I

E
;
<H
1L
B
C
J

b
B
B
KH
;
]
A
<B
C

7
8
;
J
@C
P̂
17
m
U
1X
7
e

=̀1d
_
@=<@C
P

N
@<8
1L
K;
C

iS
S
V
T
W
T
1n1G
:
S
W
`

b

N

o
p
q
r
+
1(
s)
t
t

(
)

(
t

)
t

u
t

u
)

v
t

v
)

w
t

w
)
)
t
3

N
@<8
1L
K;
C
1̀
=1d
_
@=<@C
P

1̀11i;
C
1W
S
T
x
11l
@C
B
?1̀
]
8
C
J
]
8
C
<=

Page 52



 
!""#"$%&

'
$
!"

(

)

(

*

+
,
-
./0
1

2
3
.3
4
3
0

5
6
7
!"&

 
6
8
&

+
,
-
./0
1

2
3
.3
4
3
05
6
7
!"&

 
6
8
&

9
$
:
;6
6
8

<;6#6=&>?@$A;&"?<"$BC!BD

E
F
/G
H/0
1

I
J
K
1
J
L+
.J
J
G

M
N,
H?O
2
2
J
G
G

M
N,
H?O
2
2
J
G
G

9
$
:
;6
6
8

P
!8
7
&
;?Q
&
B
%
&

(
RS
8
?'
&
C$
!B
!B
D
?T
$
""

P
!8
7
&
;?Q
&
B
%
&

U
V
!=
C!B
D
?P
!8
7
&
;

Q
&
B
%
&
?<
$
!B
C&
>
?W
;&
&
B

X
!C&
?Y
%
%
&
=
=

Z
[
\
]̂
_̀
a
?P
!8
7
&
;?

Q
&
B
%
&
?#
$
!B
C&
>
?D
;&
&
B

<
;6
#
6
=
&
>
?@
$
B
>
=
%
$
#
!B
D
?X
C;!#

b
c
d
??e
f
gc
???????????e

c
hijkl

gkm
n

e
jf
o
n
?p
q

r
s
c
it
c
u

e
f
gc

r
vkc
n
g

w
jm
xc
ig

y
if
vc

z
kgvc

e
jf
o
kn
{
|?}
m
|

z
|?~
�
�
�
�
?�
�
�
�
�
�

�
|?~
�
�
�
�
?�
�
�
�
�
�

o
o
o
|o
hl
f
|im
|�
t

e
m
?n
m
g?hif

vc
?�jm
�
?gs
kh?u
jf
o
kn
{
�?c
�
ic
l
g?�m
j?l
vf
n
n
kn
{
?l
�
jl
m
hc
h|

�
n
q
?u
khijc

l
f
n
ikc
h?f
jc
?gm
?�
c
?jc
l
m
jgc
u
?gm
?�
y
?w
vf
n
n
kn
{
?�
?�
jis
kgc
ig�
jc
|

b
c
�c
j?gm
?y
gj�
ig�
jf
v?�
n
{
kn
c
c
jh?u
c
gf
kvh?�m

j?hgj�
ig�
jf
v?u
c
hk{
n
?ijkgc

jkf
|

z
s
kh?u
jf
o
kn
{
?jc
�
f
kn
h?gs
c
?im
l
q
jk{
s
g?m
�?�
y
?w
vf
n
n
kn
{
?�
?�
jis
kgc
ig�
jc
|

p
f
n
ijm
�g?b
m
f
u
�

b
c
k{
f
gc

y
�
jjc
q
|?b
�
�
?�
b
w

�
�
jm
l
c
?�
m
�
hc

b
c
d
|

�
ig�?�
~
�
�

��b

p
�

�
��
~
~
�
�
�

�
j?y
?p
vf
it

p
f
gs
?w
m
n
u

�
m
m
vs
f
�
l
gm
n

b
c
f
u
kn
{
�?b
�
�
?�
b
�

�
h?w
jm
l
m
hc
u

y
kgc
?w
vf
n

�~
~
�
�
�
�
?�?r
e
~
�
r

�

y

X
�
Y
@
U
?(
�)
�
�

(
)

(
�

)
�

�
�

�
)

�
�

�
)

S
�

S
)
)
�
8

y
kgc
?w
vf
n
?�
h?w
jm
l
m
hc
u

�
???~
�
��
�
��
�
??�
c
n
c
jf
v?�
�
c
n
u
�
c
n
gh

p
???�
 
�~
�
��
 
??�
kn
m
j?�
�
c
n
u
�
c
n
gh

r
???�
~
�~
�
��
 
??�
kn
m
j?�
�
c
n
u
�
c
n
gh

U
V
!=
C!B
D
?P
!8
7
&
;

Q
&
B
%
&
?<
$
!B
C&
>
?W
;&
&
B

Page 53



 
!!"#
$
%&
'
'
%()
*%+
'
,
-
%'
.
/
'
0
)

1
2
3
%&
'
'
%()
*%.
/
)
+
%4
0
4
.
.
.

5
6
7
"89
:9
;
<
9
=:9
;
>
?
@
AB
C
D
?
EF
G
H

I
$
3
J
J
J
E9
=:9
;
>
?
@
AB
C
D
?
EF
G
H

K
L
%MK
N
O
%PQ
R
S
T
U
P

V
W
XY
Z[\
]̂
_̀
%a
b
cd
è
fX

g
Z̀
[_̂

d̂
XY
b
h
i
f\
Zce

j
Y
k
l
%m
n
o

Page 54


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. & Parish: 19/00031/FUL - Land west of Hill Place, Bath Road, Woolhampton
	19_00031_FUL MAP
	plans




